

Request for Proposal

RFP # 15-004P
Bus Shelters and Amenities



Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority
Purchasing Division
3201 Scherer Drive
St. Petersburg, FL 33716
Telephone (727) 540-1800
Facsimile (727) 540-0681

www.psta.net



LEGAL NOTICE

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

Proposal # 15-004P
Bus Shelters and Amenities

Sealed proposals are hereby requested by the PINELLAS SUNCOAST TRANSIT AUTHORITY, 3201 Scherer Drive, St. Petersburg, Florida 33716 to be received until 2:00 p.m. Local Time, on Tuesday, January 27, 2015 for Bus Shelters and Amenities.

A Non-Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m., Local Time, Tuesday, January 6, 2015. All interested Proposers shall attend the meeting at the above address.

Requests for clarification and/or questions concerning the issued document shall be directed to Ana Owen, Purchasing Manager at (727) 540-1800 ext. 1861; Fax (727) 540-0681; e-mail aowen@psta.net. All submittal questions concerning this Request for Proposal are due on Tuesday, January 13, 2015 at 2:00 PM, Local Time and must be in writing. This will be the only notice rendered for this procurement. Proposal Documents can be obtained at the PSTA Administrative Building, above address, during the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday or PSTA's web-site: http://www.psta.net/procurement.html.

In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, PSTA notifies all vendors that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, Disadvantaged Business Enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit a bid in response to this request and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration of an award.

PINELLAS SUNCOAST TRANSIT AUTHORITY



SUBMIT PROPOSAL TO: Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority c/o Ana Owen

Attn: RFP No. 15-004P 3201 Scherer Drive St. Petersburg, FL 33716

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

RFP No. 15-004P

Contact Person: Ana Owen, Purchasing Manager, aowen@psta.net, 727-540-1861

Planned Procurement Schedule:

#1 - Issue Date: Monday, December 15, 2014

#2 – Non-Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting: Tuesday, January 6, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. EST.

#3 - Deadline for Questions: Tuesday, January 13, 2015 by 2:00 p.m. EST by email.

#4 - Response to Questions: Friday, January 16, 2015 by 2:00 p.m. EST

#5 - Proposal Due: Tuesday, January 27, by 2:00 p.m. EST

#6 - Oral Presentations: To be determined if needed

#7 - Board Approval: Wednesday, February 25, 2015

PSTA's Mission: PSTA provides safe, affordable public transit to our community. We help guide land use decisions and support economic vitality to enhance our quality of life.

Duration of Offer: All proposals shall remain in effect for a minimum of ninety (90) days from the proposal opening date or scheduled date for receipt of proposals. Offers that allow less than ninety (90) days for acceptance by PSTA will be considered non-responsive and will be rejected.

Non-Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting: All interested Proposers should attend the pre-proposal conference. The meeting will begin at the above address in the main Administration building. Questions, suggestions or modifications may be discussed with Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority at this meeting. Oral explanations provided by PSTA will not be binding until they are produced in writing by PSTA and issued as Addenda. Only questions submitted in writing will be considered as possible addenda.

Submittal Instructions: Place label in front of your sealed proposal envelope or package. Label should contain proposal number, proposal title, opening date and time, and the name of the company submitting the proposal.

Number of copies required: One (1) original, five (5) copies and one (1) CD or USB Flash Drive shall be enclosed and sealed in envelope(s) with the Proposer's official name. The original proposal must be clearly marked as "Original".

Addenda: From time to time, addenda may be issued to the Request for Proposal. Any such addenda will be posted on Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority's (PSTA) web site, www.psta.net. Before submitting your proposal you should check the website to download any addenda that may have been issued. Please remember to sign and return addenda acknowledgement form Attachment 1 with completed proposal package.



Contents

SECTION	1: SPECIFICATIONS	_ 7
	JRCHASE OF BUS SHELTERS	
1.2 SC	COPE	7
1.3 SP	PECIFICATIONS FOR BUS SHELTERS	7
1.4 SU	JBMITTALS	8
1.5 PR	RODUCTION SCHEDULE	9
1.6 GE	ENERAL REQUIREMENTS	9
1.7 SH	IELTERS	11
1.8 EX	(PERIENCE	15
1.9 SE	RVICE	15
1.10 V	NARRANTY AND SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS	15
SECTION	2: GENERAL PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS	17
2.1 SE	ALED PROPOSALS	17
2.2 GE	ENERAL FORMAT	17
2.3	PUBLIC RECORDS	18
2.4 IN	TERPRETATION OF RFP DOCUMENTS	18
2.5 A	DDENDUM TO RFP	18
2.6 TY	PE OF CONTRACT	18
2.7 FC	DRMS	19
SECTION	3: PROPOSAL EVALUATIONS	20
SECTION	4: GENERAL CONDITIONS	22
4.1	RIGHTS OF PSTA IN REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PROCESS	22
4.2	PROPOSAL PROTEST PROCEDURES	23
4.3	PRICES, TERMS AND PAYMENT	24
4.4	TAX EXEMPTION	24
4.5	QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWARD	24
4.6	WITHHOLDING AWARD	25
4.7	PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AND POSTPONEMENT	25
4.8 PUBLI	USE OF "PINELLAS SUNCOAST TRANSIT AUTHORITY" NAME IN CONTRACTOR ADVERTISING OR C RELATIONS	25
4.9	USDOT/FTA/FDOT CONCURRENCE FOR CONTRACT AWARD	
4.10	DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION	25
4.11	DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) PARTICIPATION	26



4.12	EXCLUSIONARY OR DISCRIMINATORY SPECIFICATIONS	27
4.13	FEDERAL LOBBYING CERTIFICATION	27
4.14	LOBBYING	28
4.15	COLLUSION	28
4.16	LEGAL REQUIREMENTS	28
4.17	EXCEPTIONS	28
4.18	BONDING REQUIREMENTS	29
4.19	PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES	31
4.20	"OR EQUAL" DETERMINATION	31
4.21	MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEETS	31
4.23	CONTRACT	31
SECTION	N 5: CONTRACT	32
1.	RECITALS	32
2.	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	32
3.	SCOPE OF SERVICES	32
4.	EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM OF AGREEMENT	32
5.	TERMS OF PERFORMANCE	32
6.	COMPENSATION	33
7.	MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	34
8.	WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS.	35
9.	ASSIGNABILITY AND SUBCONTRACTING	36
10.	DELAY IN PERFORMANCE/FORCE MAJEURE	36
11.	TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT	37
12.	DISPUTES, BREACHES, DEFAULTS, OR OTHER LITIGATION	38
13.	INDEMNIFICATION	39
14.	INSURANCE	40
15.	FEDERAL PROVISIONS	41
16.	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	50
ATTACH	IMENTS	52
ATTA	CHMENT 1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA	53
ATTA	CHMENT 2 PROPOSER INFORMATION FORM	54
ATTA	CHMENT 3 PROPOSAL FORM	55
ATTA	CHMENT 4 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT	65
ATTA	CHMENT 5 CERTIFICATION OF RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING	66



ATTACHMENT 6 DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES	_ 67
ATTACHMENT 7 BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATION	_ 69
ATTACHMENT 8 CERTIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS	_ 70
ATTACHMENT 9 CERTIFICATION OF LOWER-TIER PARTICIPANTS (SUBCONTRACTORS) REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION	_ 71
ATTACHMENT 10 DBE PARTICIPATION FORM	_ 72
ATTACHMENT 11 DBE GOOD FAITH EFFORTS DOCUMENTATION FORM	_ 73
ATTACHMENT 12 VENDOR DBE PAYMENT REPORT	_ 74
ATTACHMENT 13 E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT	_ 75
ATTACHMENT 14 CONTRACTOR'S STATEMENT ON SUB-CONTRACTORS	_ 76
ATTACHMENT 15 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM	_ 77
ATTACHMENT 16 CONTRACTOR'S AND LOWER TIER PARTICIPANT'S REFERENCE FORM	_ 78
ATTACHMENT 17 OFFER & AWARD	_ 79
ATTACHMENT 18 REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	_ 80
ATTACHMENT 19 STATEMENT OF NO PROPOSAL	81



SECTION 1: SPECIFICATIONS

1.1 PURCHASE OF BUS SHELTERS

Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority is currently seeking Proposers to enter into a potential five (5) year contract with the initial contract being for three (3) years with an optional annual renewal for a maximum of two years (2).

The purpose of this request is to put in place a contract for the provision of passenger bus shelters of various designs, sizes, and colors for a defined period of time, to be ordered in increments of five (5) on an as needed basis.

Final number of shelters to be purchased will be dependent on cost of the shelter and the grant approval process. The successful proposer will ship/deliver the bus shelters which meet the requirements specified in this RFP.

1.2 SCOPE

- A. The purpose of these specifications is to define a conceptual design, construction, of passenger waiting shelters to be installed along public transit routes in Pinellas County, Florida.
- B. Shelters will be new structures, used or demonstrator shelters will not be accepted. All shelters will comply with all applicable regulations including but not limited to the following:
 - 1) Complies with ADA requirements
 - 2) Complies with Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards
 - 3) Complies with all Federal, State, County, Local, and other government laws, regulations, ordinance, and codes
- C. Multiple design submissions are required as PSTA will select up to four (4) different shelter designs or size to be used throughout the contract. The final shelter designs will be based on the overall quality and best value to PSTA.

1.3 SPECIFICATIONS FOR BUS SHELTERS

A. ASTM Standard Tests

- 1) ASTM B 209-Specification for Aluminum and Aluminum- Alloy sheet and plate
- 2) ASTM B 221- Specification for Aluminum and Aluminum- Alloy Extruded bars, Rods, Wire, Profiles, and Tubes
- 3) ASTM D 3359- Standard Test Methods for Measuring Adhesion by Tape Test
- 4) ASTM D 3363- Standard Test Method for Film Hardness by Pencil Test
- 5) ASTM G 155- Standard Practice for Operating Xenon Arc Light Apparatus for Exposure of Non-Metallic Materials
- 6) ASCE/SEI 7- Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and Other Structures
- 7) ADM- Aluminum Design Manual (2005 Edition)
- 8) FDOT- Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction)



- Stainless steel materials composition and properties: Certificates attesting to the quality, origin, material grade, material chemical composition and compliance with ASTM standards.
- 10) Aluminum materials composition and properties: Certificates attesting to the quality, origin, material grade, material chemical composition and compliance with ASTM standards.
- 11) Steel materials composition and properties: Certificates attesting to the quality, origin, material grade, material chemical composition and compliance with ASTM standards.
- 12) Welding fabrication: Certificates of compliance to American Welding Society (AWS) requirements for aluminum welded parts.
 - a) Certification indicating compliance with AWS D1.2-97, "Structural Welding Code Aluminum".
 - b) Certifications available upon request showing each welder involved with the fabrication of specified products has passed AWS qualifications tests for welding processes involved.
- 13) Welding procedure: Qualified welding procedure for all fabricated sub-assemblies to be manufactured in compliance with American Welding Society (AWS). Submit prior to manufacturing start.
- 14) Comprehensive, detailed and engineered shop drawings depicting all connections, materials used, finish, weld joint sizes and detailed hardware information shall be submitted prior to manufacturing start.
- 15) Buy America Compliance: All mill certificates shall be provided indicating US origin of materials and compliance with Buy America requirements.

1.4 SUBMITTALS

A. Product Data:

- 1) Product data, installation methods, available colors and sizes bases on the drawings and specifications will be made available upon formal request of such information.
- 2) Storage and handling requirements and recommendations are made available via separate attachment to these specifications.

B. Shop Drawings:

- 1) Signed and sealed shop drawings, inclusive of engineering will be made available upon award of contract and via the formal submittal process as required by PSTA.
- 2) The manufacture certifies that the shelter designs proposed are compliant with all Federal, State, County, Local and other government laws, regulations, ordinances, and building codes.
- 3) Shop drawings will be comprehensive, providing for every aspect of the shelter, map case, solar mounting and components, back panels, columns and electrical components and shall include but will not be limited to the following:
 - a) Plan views
 - b) Elevation views
 - c) Sections with details
 - d) Materials



- e) Connections
- f) Type of weld joints
- g) Specific hardware information
- h) Finish color
- 4) All text documents and original graphics generated by the manufacturer shall be submitted in both hard copy format and on CD ROM. For drawings, the computer files shall be submitted in a PDF format. Text documents shall be submitted in Microsoft Word format.

C. Product Support:

1) Upon award of contract, stamped and sealed, engineering documents proving structural integrity of the shelter will be provided for review by and approval of PSTA.

1.5 PRODUCTION SCHEDULE

A. Production Time:

1) The production time is to be closely coordinated with PSTA and shall be designed to meet a predetermined and agreed upon schedule.

1.6 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

- 1) All shelters shall be self-supporting without the front wall section.
- 2) All frame-to-frame and frame-to-sub-frame assemblies shall be connected with concealed fasteners
- 3) Vertical posts and upper and lower horizontal members shall be extruded solid tube aluminum (no interlocking pieces). Minimum thickness shall be no less than one-eighth inch (1/8") thick.
- 4) Each wall section shall have vertical mullions of extruded solid tube aluminum (interlocking pieces) separating the window lights, securely fastened to the top and bottom horizontal frame members. Minimum thickness shall be no less than one-eighth inch (1/8") thick.
- 5) Mullions shall be designed in such a way that they fit firmly, and hold the window light panels firmly in place. Minimum thickness shall be no less than one-eighth inch (1/8") thick.
- 6) Unless otherwise stated in these specifications, all aluminum members, including vertical posts, frame members, frame connections, mounting brackets, and schedule holder shall have a minimum one-eighth inch (1/8") thickness.
- 7) Window lights shall be fully tempered float glass.
- 8) The tempered glass shall, at a minimum, meet the Federal Specification DG-1403-B, U Glass, Plate (Float), Sheet, Figured, and Spandrel (Heat Strengthened and Fully Tempered)., the American National Standards Institute Standard Z97.1, US Standard Performance Specifications and Methods of Test for Transparent Safety Glazing Material used in Buildings, and the United States Federal Safety Standards 16-CRF-1201.



- 9) Each window light shall be a single piece without seams or splices for its entire width and height. All window lights shall be three-eighths inch (3/8") thick and shall have seamed edges. Each window light shall be clearly and permanently marked to indicate that it is tempered glass
- 10) Shelters shall be designed so that window lights are securely engaged within the frame, able to withstand excessive vandalism without disengaging. The window light shall be engaged by aluminum framing, minimum aluminum thickness of one-eighth inch (3/8").
- 11) The framing shall be designed to allow the removal of one window light without affecting the framing around adjacent window lights. The window light frame shall be one continuous piece for the entire length of each side of the window light. It shall fully cover and protect the edge of the window light.
- 12) The window light frame shall be designed to accommodate glass from three-sixteenths to three-eighths inches, 3/16" to 3/8" thick by changing the size of the compression gasket only. Compression gasket shall be used to attain a secure engagement of the window light and to provide protection so that no portion of the glass can come into contact with the aluminum material.
- 13) One-quarter inch (1/4") clearance shall be provided on all sides between the edges of the tempered glass and the glazing channel. If the glass manufacturer's specifications require greater clearance, those specifications shall prevail.
- 14) The window light frames shall be secured with aluminum pop rivets, colored to match shelter frame.
- 15) Window lights shall be engaged to a depth sufficient to withstand temperature variations for the area where it will be installed in.
- 16) Shelters shall be securely fastened to the mounting bracket, and made level, in a manner consistent with the existing base conditions (concrete sidewalk in many instances).
- 17) No sharp edges shall be allowed and no materials including anchor assemblies may protrude into the doorways. The manufacture must supply details of the proposed method to level the shelter on a level mounting bracket, and to secure it to the ground.
- 18) The mounting method shall allow for an external sleeve that is eight inches (8") in height allowing for the adjustment of any or all legs up to six inches (6") in height to level the shelter. Cutting of posts shall not be permitted.
- 19) Mounting brackets shall use external sleeve for connection to the shelter posts.
- 20) The anchor bolts shall be positioned within the shelter and/or beneath the lower horizontal frame members to the maximum extent possible.
- 21) The aluminum mounting brackets shall have a finish to match the color of the shelter frame. One-half inch (1/2") inch diameter stainless steel expansion bolts, washers, and nuts, shall be used to attach the mounting brackets to the concrete slabs and sidewalks.
- 22) Mounting brackets shall have a weep hole for drainage of trapped water at the edge of one of its vertical sides. Mounting brackets and anchor bolts shall be of sufficient strength to withstand all loads defined in these specifications. Use of welding for the fabrication of mounting brackets is approved for use, except vertical sleeves shall be of one piece construction.
- 23) Shelters shall be attached to each mounting bracket with four (4) one-quarter inch (1/4") aluminum drive rivets, color to match shelter, with stainless steel pins.
- 24) All fasteners are to be stainless steel
- 25) All components of these shelters are to be designed with attention to a clean appearance and a tamperproof assembly. No regular, Phillips, hex, or square head screws or bolts will be used except where approved. All fasteners shall be non-corrosive. No welds will be allowed unless specifically approved by the PSTA.



26) If the design of the fastening techniques used in the shelter requires special hand tools for installation and removal, the tools will be included with each shelter delivery for PSTA.

1.7 SHELTERS

- A. The shelter shall consist of, but are not limited to, the following basic requirements:
 - 1) The shelters are to be designed and manufactured for heavy use outdoors.
 - 2) The shelter design meets, if not exceeds, ASTM, BIFMA and AASTHO applicable standard codes.
 - 3) There shall be no welds in any of the aluminum surfaces unless so designated or approved by PSTA.
- B. The major components of the shelter are as follows:
 - 1) Foundation:
 - a) Signed and sealed structural drawing depicting minimum foundation requirements for each type of shelter shall be provided at time of engineering submittal.

2) Columns:

- a) Custom aluminum extrusion of one piece, seamless ASTM 6061-T6 aluminum alloy rolled to shape with laser cut plates welded for ground and roof attachment.
- b) There shall be four vertical posts supporting the four corners of the shelter.
- c) Minimum of one (1), maximum two (2) vertical supports located at intermediate points of the rear wall. Posts or supports must be symmetrically located.
- d) The shelter shall be supported by vertical posts that are anchored to the mounting bracket.
- e) The vertical posts must support the roof, side, rear, and benches. Each vertical post shall be part of one wall section which it supports.

3) Roof Beam:

a) Laser cut from ASTM 6061-T6 aluminum alloy and custom welded

4) Roof Material:

- a) Roof panels shall be an arched "Acrylite Satinice (DP9) Laguna 5H74DC", or equal/equivalent which must be approved by PSTA.
- b) Must be UV protected and shall be covered by specified manufacturer's warranty period for a minimum of (10) years against breakage, yellowing and UV deterioration.
- c) Appropriate non-hardening caulking shall be used where necessary to provide a leak-proof installation.
- d) The roof shall be designed to meet Florida Building codes (2010).

5) Back Panels

a) One modular section of map case display



b) Two modular sections of perforated aluminum panels with clear anodized aluminum finish

6) Side Panels

- a) Far side will be a full sized panel .090" aluminum perforated side panel enclosed in a unitized, welded structural aluminum frame with concealed mechanical fasteners
- b) The approach side will be three-eighths inch (3/8") Tempered glass "Pilkington Artic Blue," or equal/equivalent which must be approved by PSTA.
- c) The left, rear, and right wall sections shall connect to one another and to the roof.
- d) Included in the design an elliptical shaped PSTA logo on all gable ends of the shelter. The Logo colors PMS 285 Blue and PMS 3252 Green

7) Integrated Map Case/Information Display

- a) Shall have hinged access door and locking latch mechanism
- b) Shall be custom fabricated and engineered to meet the same criteria as that of existing shelters, Florida Building Code (2010), High Velocity Hurricane Zone (HVHZ). Shall be single sided and attached mechanically to the column supports at back of the shelter.
- c) One window light shall include a schedule holder. PSTA will determine which window light depending upon the PSTA shelter type and design. The schedule holder will have a clear anodized aluminum finish.
- d) The vertical dimensions of the schedule holder shall be thirty six inches (36"). The horizontal dimension of the schedule holder frame shall be a minimum of forty eight inches (48").
- e) All frame surfaces of the schedule holder shall be securely fastened to the contiguous members of the shelter frame, or shall be of sufficient strength and rigidity to withstand forces of the same magnitude and moment which can be withstood by the shelter frame itself.
- f) Sides of the schedule holder which are not enveloped by shelter framing shall abut shelter surfaces and shall be designed in such a way that no gap exists or can be introduced which will enable the schedule holder to be pried from its mountings.
- g) The schedule holder glass panel which is located toward the interior of the shelter shall be three-sixteenths inch (3/16") thick clear, fully tempered, float glass.
- h) The glass shall be a single piece without seams or splices for its entire width and height, and shall have seamed edges. It shall be clearly and permanently marked to indicate that it is tempered glass. The outside or back glass panel of the Schedule Holder is the window light of the shelter.
- i) Design must include a tamperproof locking or sealing system, comprised of tamperproof screws, which makes the schedule information inaccessible to tampering or the insertion of foreign materials, but which provides easy access by PSTA employees for frequent changes in the schedule information. A 1-1/2" aluminum piano hinge (minimum gauge .040", maximum gauge .062") shall be provided for the entire vertical length of the schedule holder.



8) Benches

a) Seating

- I. 0.090" perforated clear anodized aluminum panel.
- II. Shaped panel seats in channel provided in ends of bench.
- III. Additional support provided underneath surface at anti-vagrant bar.

b) Ends

I. Custom cast aluminum of 6063-T5 alloy ends and anti-vagrant bar designed specifically to enhance the accompanying shelter.

c) Finish

- I. Clear anodized aluminum finish to match shelters. Finish color will be chosen from a standard color chart.
- d) The bench will be free standing. It shall be designed and installed in such a manner as to be capable of supporting the total dead and design live loads of the bench.
- e) The benches must meet ADA requirements and be vagrant resistant. The bench in the shelter shall be one-half (1/2) the length of the shelter.

9) Trash Receptacle

- a) A forty-eight (48) gallon column mounted trash receptacle with lockable lid, mounted left of the shelter, shall be included with each shelter.
- b) The trash receptacle shall be comprised of metal and shall be coated so as to resist corrosion. The final color of the trash receptacle will be chosen from available manufacturer options.
- 10) Electrical Details- System choice shall be indicated at time of order
 - a) Shall be UL Listed
 - b) Shall provide for either AC (with transformer) or PV (photovoltaic) as determined by the contracting agency.
 - c) Shall be location specific

11) Solar Mounting System

- a) To be determined for optimal sun exposure
- b) Utilizing custom solar brackets for best orientation per site
- c) Shelter roof engineering is calculated with solar panel and hardware installed and shall meet the same criteria as that of the shelter.



12) Light Fixtures

- a) Light fixtures are to be integrated into the beam of the shelter design with all mounting holes and hardware provided for ease of installation.
- b) (1) 1-ft UL- approved 12-watt light fixture (24Vdc, cool white).
- c) (2) 2-ft UL- approved 12-watt light fixture (24Vdc, cool white) lens cover light fixtures are to be concealed behind a custom designed lens cover of polycarbonate without limiting light transmission by more than 10%. Lens covers are to be designed to conform to the shape of the rafter design and shall be made to match existing for parts replacement purposes.

13) Solar Panel Mounting Systems

- a) Made in a variation of designs to accompany configuration in any position.
- b) Shelter wind-load and engineering is to be calculated with solar panel attached.

14) Solar Panel

- Mounting holes, brackets, supports and other hardware necessary for complete installation shall be coordinated and included in shelter assembly prior to finish being applied.
- b) 85 Watt Photovoltaic Panel.
- c) Solar Controller/Battery System: System shall include but not be limited to the following:
 - I. NEMA rated battery enclosure
 - II. Light controller
 - III. Sealed, valve regulated, gelled-electrolyte batteries
 - IV. Lighting protector
 - V. Disconnect switch Astronomical time clock with battery back up
 - VI. Photocell
- d) Roof mounted solar lighting package shall provide a minimum reading of Fc's at ground level, in a four by eight foot (4' x 8') shelter of no less than 5Fc in the middle of the shelter and no lower than 15Fc at a height of four feet 4' from the ground (at same location). All wiring is to be concealed and a 110v hard wiring solution shall be offered.
- e) The light fixture should at the minimum contain 24, 1W 100 Lumen LED's. The LED's should be 5000k (+10%) for the natural daylight color representation. Any LED out of this range will have to be approved by PSTA.

15) Finish

a) The shelters shall be constructed of an aluminum frame assembly with an anodized aluminum finish. Finish color will be chosen from a standard color chart.



1.8 EXPERIENCE

- A. References shall be requested for the evaluation and award process.
- B. Responding Firms shall provide background of their qualification to design and fabricate quality transits shelters and demonstrate their financial stability and ability to provide long term service including replacement parts.

1.9 SERVICE

- A. The manufacturer or supplier of the aforementioned shelters shall guarantee replacement parts and components for the shelters for a period of not less than ten (10) years from date of purchase.
- B. The manufacture shall provide a recommended, itemized list of the types and quantities of spare parts and any other items that are deemed necessary for maintenance of the passenger shelters to include unit prices.

1.10 WARRANTY AND SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. As part of the bid proposal, the manufacturer shall provide a complete set of written, (and diagrammatic, as necessary) instructions for the assembly and installation of the shelters.
- B. Warranty begins from the date PSTA received, inspected and accepted products
- C. All general material and workmanship shall be guaranteed to be free of defects for a minimum of (10) ten years from the date of purchase.
- D. Replacement parts shall be made available for purchase by PSTA for a minimum of (10) ten (years) after purchase at the agreed upon price.
- E. A breakdown of all parts and main components shall be listed with the warranty terms.
- F. Length of warranty will be considered during the evaluation and award process.
- G. Manufacturer shall provide proof of design and testing.
- H. Warranty work must cover defects in materials. Defects shall include, but not limited to:
- I. Parts: Loose, damaged and/or missing parts
- J. Finish: Abnormal deterioration
- K. Solar Lighting warranty minimums:
 - 1) Battery- 5 years (prorated)
 - 2) LED's -20 years
 - 3) Charge Controller and LED Driver-5 years
 - 4) Solar Panel- 20 years
 - 5) Wiring Harnessing-10 years
 - 6) Light Fixture-10 years
 - 7) Mounting hardware- 20 years



Shelter 'A' - Illustration





SECTION 2: GENERAL PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

- **2.1 SEALED PROPOSALS:** All proposal sheets and the original forms must be executed and submitted in a sealed envelope. (DO NOT INCLUDE MORE THAN ONE PROPOSAL PER ENVELOPE). All proposals are subject to the conditions specified herein. Proposals that do not comply with these conditions are subject to rejection.
- **2.2 GENERAL FORMAT**: In preparing the proposal, please duplex print all sections to reduce paper consumption and use recycled products, where feasible. Proposals shall be prepared on 8.5" x 11" paper with 1" margins on all sides. Typing shall be single spaced and no smaller than font size 11. Use of 11" x 17" fold out sheets for large tables, charts or diagrams is permissible, but should be limited. Each part of the proposal should be clearly labeled and tabbed for easy reference. Promotional or advertising information will not be accepted.

The proposals shall:

- Contain concise written materials that enable the reviewer to clearly understand the Proposer's capabilities and approach to the project.
- Specifically describe the Proposer's role in relationship to its subcontractors and shall describe the interfaces with said subcontractors.
- Reflect a level of understanding of the work required.

The proposals shall be addressed to:

Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority c/o: Ana Owen, Purchasing Manager Att'n: Proposal # 15-004P 3201 Scherer Drive St. Petersburg, Florida 33716 727-540-1861

If a proposer's submittal does not all fit in one box, please mark the boxes accordingly (example – Box 1 of 2, Box 2 of 2).

A) Cover Letter:

- A cover letter transmitting the proposal must be submitted and dated. The letter must indicate that the Proposer agrees to be bound by the proposal without modifications, unless mutually agreed to upon further negotiations between PSTA and the Proposer.
- The cover letter shall contain the name, title, address, e-mail address, and telephone number(s) of an individual(s) with authority to bind the Proposer during the period in which PSTA is evaluating proposals. The cover letter shall also identify the legal form of the firm. If the firm is a corporation, the cover letter shall identify in which state the company is incorporated. If a consortium, joint venture or team approach is being proposed, provide the above information for all participating firms. The Proposer should specifically describe the Proposer's role in relationship to its subcontractors and shall describe the interfaces with said subcontractors.
- The cover letter shall be signed by a principal of the firm or other person fully authorized to act on behalf of the firm or team.
- **B)** Table of Contents: The Table of Contents should identify locations of all sections in the proposal.



C) References: Proposers must provide a minimum of four (4) references. The reference will contain the companies name, address, phone number, point of contact, the size of the project and description. Must indicate whether private and/or public sector. Proposers are encouraged to submit more than four (4) references if possible. References should be for similar or related projects that proposed key staff members for this project have worked.

D) LATE PROPOSALS OR WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS

- 1) Any proposal received at the PSTA offices designated in the solicitation after the time specified for receipt of proposals will not be considered and will be returned to the Proposer unopened.
- 2) Modifications in writing received prior to the time set for the proposal opening will be accepted, however will not be considered if received after the time set
- 3) A proposal may be withdrawn in person by the Proposer or their authorized representative, provided their identity is made known and a receipt is signed for the proposal, and only if the withdrawal is made prior to the time specified for receipt of proposals.

2.3 PUBLIC RECORDS

All proposals submitted are public records subject to production unless specifically exempted by Florida Statutes. Proposals which contain information that is "trade secret" as defined in Section 812.081, Florida Statutes, or otherwise exempt from Chapter 119, Florida Statutes shall be designated as such and the trade secret or exempt information shall be explicitly identified. However, any information marked as "trade secret" or exempt may be produced by PSTA in response to a public records request if PSTA determines that the information does not meet the definition of "trade secret" in Section 812.081 and is not exempt from Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.

2.4 INTERPRETATION OF RFP DOCUMENTS

No oral interpretations will be made to any firms as to the meaning of specifications or any other contracts documents. All questions pertaining to the terms and conditions or scope of work of this RFP must be sent in writing (mail, e-mail, or fax) and received by the date specified. Responses to questions may be handled as an addendum if the response would provide clarification to requirements of the proposal. All such addenda shall become part of the contract documents. PSTA will not be responsible for any other explanation or interpretation of the proposed proposal made or given prior to the award of the contract. The PSTA will be unable to respond to questions received after the specified time frame. If no request for clarification is submitted by the Proposer all conditions and requirements contained within are accepted and understood by the Proposer.

2.5 ADDENDUM TO RFP

If it becomes necessary to revise this RFP, an addendum will be provided to all participants having signed in at the pre-proposal meeting or those having expressed an interest in providing a proposal.

2.6 TYPE OF CONTRACT

PSTA intends to award a firm, fixed price contract. The services of the Proposer will be based on the Specifications (or Statement of Work) as outlined in Section 2 of this RFP.



2.7 FORMS

Compliance with these requirements is mandatory for contract award. All attachments must be completed, signed, and submitted with the Proposal.

- ATTACHMENT 1 Acknowledgement of Addenda
- ATTACHMENT 2 Proposer Information Form
- ATTACHMENT 3 Proposal Form
- ATTACHMENT 4 Non-Collusion Affidavit
- ATTACHMENT 5 Certification of Restrictions on Lobbying
- ATTACHMENT 6 Disclosure of Lobbying Activities
- ATTACHMENT 7 Buy America Certification
- ATTACHMENT 8 Certification of Contractor Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters
- ATTACHMENT 9 Certification of Lower-Tier Participants (Subcontractors) Regarding Debarment,
 Suspension, and Other Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
- ATTACHMENT 10 DBE Participation Form
- ATTACHMENT 11 DBE Good Faith Efforts Documentation Form
- ATTACHMENT 12 Vendor DBE Payment Report
- ATTACHMENT 13 E-verify Affidavit
- ATTACHMENT 14 Contractor's Statement on Sub-Contractors
- ATTACHMENT 15 Drug Free Workplace Program
- ATTACHMENT 16 Contractor's and Lower Tier Participant's Reference Form
- ATTACHMENT 17 Offer and Award
- ATTACHMENT 18 Request for Waiver of Insurance Requirements
- ATTACHMENT 19 Statement of No Proposal



SECTION 3: PROPOSAL EVALUATIONS

PSTA reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals and may select, and negotiate with one or more Proposers concurrently should they both be deemed equal, and enter into a Contract with such Proposer who is determined, by the PSTA, to provide the services which are in the best interest of PSTA. PSTA may agree to such terms and conditions as it may determine to be in its interest.

PSTA's Evaluation Committee reserves the right to request additional information from Proposers, to negotiate terms and conditions of the Contract, request oral presentations, or ask Proposers to appear before the Evaluation Committee to clarify points on their proposal.

Proposals will be opened immediately after the proposal submittal date and time by Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority, Purchasing Division. The public may attend the proposal opening, but may not immediately review any proposals submitted until PSTA provides a notice of intended decision or 30 days after the opening of the proposals, whichever occurs first. The names of respondents and their proposal amounts will be read aloud at the time of opening. The Evaluation Committee will evaluate the submittals in accordance with the evaluation criteria listed below, and will identify and prepare a short-list of the top-rate Proposers to interview. Proposers shall include sufficient information to allow the Evaluation Committee to thoroughly evaluate and score their proposals. Each proposal submitted shall be evaluated and ranked by the Evaluation Committee.

The evaluation criteria define the factors that will be used by the Evaluation Committee to evaluate and score responsive, responsible and qualified proposals. The evaluation criteria shall include the following:

- A. Quality of Response 25pts
 - 1) Information is presented in a clear, logical manner and is a well-organized RFP Passenger Bus Shelters w/ Options
 - 2) Ease of assembly/maintenance
 - 3) Manual, Drawings, and Warranties
- B. Shelter Design 25pts
 - 1) Durability
 - 2) Attractiveness
- C. Firm and Staff Experience 25pts
 - 1) Recent experience with similar projects/transit agencies
 - 2) Financial/Managerial capability & demonstrated ability
 - 3) References
- D. Reasonableness and Cost Effectiveness of Price Proposal 25pts
 - 1) Competitiveness of cost proposal
 - 2) Completeness and Detail

DBE participation is not mandatory but the Proposer will be required to make a good faith effort to utilize DBE subcontractors. If a portion of the services is to be subcontracted to a DBE, the Proposer must submit for each subcontractor the information requested in Section 4.11. This good faith effort must be documented as part of the proposal.



PSTA's Evaluation Committee may consist of the following PSTA staff:

- Director of Maintenance
- Chief Financial Officer
- Superintendent of Facilities & Equipment Maintenance
- Construction Manager
- Manager of Communications

No PSTA employee, officer, or agent, including any member of an evaluation committee for a PSTA project, may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a PSTA contract if a real or apparent conflict of interest would exist. Such a conflict would exist when any of the following parties has a material financial or other interest in a firm selected for award: any employee, officer, or agent of PSTA; any member of his/her immediate family; his/her partner; or an organization employing or about to employ any of the preceding. Any interest as owner or stockholder of one percent (1%) or less in such a firm shall not be deemed to be a material financial interest, but serving as Director, officer, consultant, or employee of such an organization would be deemed a material interest.

The interview will begin with a thirty (30) minute oral presentation by the Proposer on their RFP submittal. At the completion of the presentation, the Proposer should be prepared to discuss their submittal and answer questions posed by the Evaluation Committee.

Following completion of the interview process, the Evaluation Committee will review the evaluation of the written RFP relative to the input received during the interview process and prepare a final ranking of the short-listed Respondents.

All Respondents will be notified after the Evaluation Committee has selected the most qualified Respondent(s).

Award of this RFP shall be on the basis of the above-outlined evaluation criteria and awarded to the Proposer whose proposal is judged as providing the best value in meeting the interest of PSTA and the objectives of the project, in PSTA's sole determination.



SECTION 4: GENERAL CONDITIONS

4.1 RIGHTS OF PSTA IN REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PROCESS

PSTA may investigate the qualifications of any Proposer under consideration. PSTA may require confirmation of information furnished by a Proposer, and require additional evidence of qualifications to perform the Services described in this RFP. In addition to any rights conveyed by Florida law, PSTA specifically reserves the right to:

- Disqualify any Proposer in accordance with the General Conditions
- Reject any or all of the Proposals, at its discretion
- Remedy errors in the RFP
- Cancel the entire RFP
- Issue subsequent RFP
- Rank firms and negotiate with the highest ranking firm
- PSTA reserves the right to select the proposal that it believes will serve the best interest of PSTA
- Appoint evaluation committees to review Proposals
- Seek the assistance of outside technical experts to review Proposals
- Approve or disapprove the use of particular Subcontractors and Suppliers
- Establish a short list of Proposers eligible for discussions after review of written Proposals
- Solicit best and final offers (BAFO) from all or some of the Proposers
- Determine whether or not a Proposer is a responsible Proposer
- Reject any part of a proposal unless the proposal has been qualified as provided
- Negotiate with any, all or none of the Proposers
- Award a contract to one Proposer
- Accept other than the lowest priced Proposal
- Request any necessary clarifications or proposal data without changing the terms
- Disqualify the Proposal(s) upon evidence of collusion with intent to defraud or other illegal practices on the part of the Proposer(s)
- Waive any informalities or irregularities in any Proposal, to the extent permitted by law
- Make selection of the Proposer to perform the services required on the basis of the original proposals without negotiation

This RFP does not bind or commit PSTA to enter into a Contract with any of the Proposers. In the event PSTA rejects all proposals and concurrently provides notice of its intent to reissue, all proposals will be exempt from public record production until PSTA issues a notice of intended decision on the reissued request for proposals.



4.2 PROPOSAL PROTEST PROCEDURES

For projects funded through a Federal grant, the protest procedures found in 49 CFR §18.26(b)(9) will govern the process.

- A) Right to Protest: Any interested party, as defined by FTA Circular 4220.1F, Chapter VII, as it may be amended from time to time, who wishes to protest a PSTA decision or intended decision concerning a bid or a contract award, shall file a written Notice of Protest with the CEO of PSTA within seventy-two hours after the posting of the bid tabulation or after the issuance of the notice of PSTA's decision or intended decision and shall file a formal written protest within ten days after the date of the Notice of Protest. The formal written protest shall state with particularity the basis of the protest, including the facts and law upon which the protest is based and providing any supporting documentation. Failure to file a Notice of Protest of failure to file a formal written protest within the time periods set forth above shall constitute a waiver of protest.
- B) Providing a Bond: Any firm or person who files a protest shall file with PSTA, at the time of filing the formal written protest, a bond payable to PSTA in an amount equal to one percent of the estimate of the total value of the contract or \$5,000, whichever is less. Such bond shall be conditioned upon payment of all costs which may be adjusted against the protestor upon the conclusion of the protest proceedings. If the protest determination is not in favor of the protester, PSTA shall recover all costs, damages and charges incurred by it during the protest, excluding attorneys' fees. Upon payment of such costs and charges by the person or firm protesting the decision or intended decision, the bond shall be returned.
- C) Consideration of Protest: PSTA's CEO will consider all protests of a PSTA decision or intended decision concerning a bid solicitation or a contract award where the protestor has complied with the requirements of subsections A and B of this section. When the CEO is a member of the committee that makes a recommendation or intended decision, the CEO shall designate a Department Director to consider the protest. The CEO or his/her designee shall not consider any protest presented orally or not presented within the time limits set forth in subsection A. The CEO or his/her designee shall provide the protestor and all other proposers with a written determination of the protest within fifteen (15) days of receiving the formal written protest. The CEO or his/her designee may provide an opportunity to resolve the protest by mutual agreement between the parties within seven days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, of PSTA's receipt of the formal written protest.
- D) Protest to FTA: Any protester whose protest has been denied by PSTA's CEO or his/her designee may file a protest with FTA within five days of the date the protestor has received actual or constructive notice of the CEO 's or his/her designee's decision. The protester must comply with FTA's procedures and FTA Circular 4220.1F, Chapter VII. PSTA's CEO or his/her designee shall submit any reports or documents requested by FTA in its consideration of the protest.
- E) Stay of Procurement During Protests: When a protest has been timely filed with PSTA or timely filed with FTA, during the pendency of that protest, PSTA shall not make an award of a contract. PSTA shall comply with all provisions of Chapter VII, if it proceeds to make an award during the pendency of a protest filed with FTA. If PSTA does not make an award while a protest is pending with PSTA, after five days from the date the CEO or his/her designee rendered his decision, the CEO or his/her designee shall confirm with FTA that FTA has not received a protest on the contract in question before PSTA proceeds with making an award or with the procurement if an award already had been made.



F) Notice to Proposers: Proposals with recommendations will be posted on a bulletin board maintained at PSTA's principal place of business for purposes of posting proposal/bid tabulations and scores. Upon receipt of a formal written protest, PSTA will give notice of the protest to all proposers, or if the proposal already was awarded at the time the protest was filed with PSTA, only to the successful proposer. When a protest results in a delay of an award of the contract pending the disposition of the protest, the proposer(s) whose proposals might become eligible for award will be requested, before expiration of the time for acceptance of their proposals (with consent of sureties, if any) to extend the time for acceptance so as to avoid the need for re-advertisement and re-submittal.

4.3 PRICES, TERMS AND PAYMENT

Firm prices shall be proposed and must include all ancillary costs as well as the following:

- A) Taxes: PSTA does not pay federal excise and sales taxes or state excise and use taxes on direct purchases.
- B) Discounts: Cash discounts for prompt payment shall not be considered in determining the lowest net cost for proposal evaluation purposes.
- C) Mistakes: Proposers are expected to examine the conditions, scope of work, proposal prices, extensions, specifications and all instructions pertaining to the request for proposal. Failure to do so will be at the Proposers risk.
- D) Invoicing and Payment: Invoicing and Payment: Charges rendered by Proposer to PSTA shall be due and payable in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act.

4.4 TAX EXEMPTION

PSTA is exempt from payment of all Federal, State, and local taxes in connection with this Project. Said taxes shall not be included in the proposal or proposal prices. PSTA will provide necessary tax exemption certificates. PSTA's Tax Identification number is: #85-8012617996C-4. This provision does not relieve the Proposer from the responsibility to pay all applicable taxes for goods, services, and labor acquired in the performance of this Project.

4.5 QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWARD

Award of this contract shall be made to the proposal which is responsive in all respects to these procurement requirements, and where the Proposer is determined to be a responsible Proposer, a determination that shall be made solely at the discretion of PSTA. The Proposer affirms and declares:

- A) The Proposer has the capacity to do business within the State of Florida.
- B) The Proposer has the capability to assure completion of the required services within the time specified under this contract.
- C) The Proposer presently has the necessary facilities, financial resources and licenses to complete the contract in a satisfactory manner and within the required time.
- D) The Proposer is of lawful age and that no other person, firm or corporation has any interest in this proposal or the contract proposed to be entered into.
- E) The Proposer is not in arrears to the Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority upon debt or contract and is not defaulting as surety or otherwise, upon any obligation to the Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority.
- F) No member, officer, or employee of PSTA during his tenure or for two years thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof.



- G) To be "qualified" by PSTA, the Proposer must have all State and Local licenses as legally required that are necessary to perform and complete the work as called for herein.
- H) The Proposer is not on the Comptroller General's list of ineligible consultants.

4.6 WITHHOLDING AWARD

This solicitation for proposals does not bind or commit PSTA to award a contract, pay any costs incurred in preparation of proposal or proposals in response to this solicitation, or to procure or contract for goods or services. Proposer shall be responsible for all costs incurred as part of their participation in the pre-award process.

4.7 PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AND POSTPONEMENT

PSTA reserves the right to postpone, accept, or reject any and all proposals in whole or in part, on such basis as PSTA deems to be in its best interest to do so, subject to the rules and regulations set forth by the U.S. Department of Transportation.

Any person, firm, corporation, joint venture/partnership, or other interested party that has been compensated by PSTA or a consultant engaged by PSTA for assistance in preparing the RFP Documents and/or estimate shall be considered to have gained an unfair competitive advantage in proposing and shall be precluded from submitting a Proposal in response to the RFP.

Any person, firm, corporation, joint venture/partnership, or other interested party that has continued discussions regarding this RFP with PSTA or consultant staff other than the Contract Administrator (with the exception of the Contract Compliance Office regarding DBE informational requests or informational requests on the Lobbying Program) after the RFP is issued may be considered to have gained an unfair competitive advantage in proposing and may be precluded from submitting a Proposal in response to the RFP.

4.8 USE OF "PINELLAS SUNCOAST TRANSIT AUTHORITY" NAME IN CONTRACTOR ADVERTISING OR PUBLIC RELATIONS

PSTA reserves the right to review and approve any advertising copy related to this Project in any way prior to publication. The successful Proposer will not allow such copy to be published in their advertisements or public relations programs until submitting such copy and receiving prior written approval from PSTA. The successful Proposer agrees that published information relating to this Project will be factual and in no way imply that PSTA endorses the successful Proposers firm, service or product. In submitting a proposal, the Proposer agrees not to use the results there from as a part of any commercial advertising.

4.9 USDOT/FTA/FDOT CONCURRENCE FOR CONTRACT AWARD

The award of a contract for this Project may be subject to review and concurrence by the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration and/or the Florida Department of Transportation.

4.10 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

Proposers shall complete and submit as part of their proposal, the Certification of Primary Contractor Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters for all projects when the total aggregate value of the contract exceeds \$100,000. The Proposer shall also submit a list of subcontracts and subcontractors that will have a financial interest in this Project that exceeds \$25,000 or will have a critical influence on or a substantive control over the Project. A Certification of Lower-Tier Participants Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusions shall be submitted by the Proposer to PSTA for each listed subcontractor prior to contract award.



This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, the Contractor is required to verify that none of the Contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945. The Contractor is required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. By signing and submitting its proposal, the Proposer certifies as follows: The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by PSTA. If it is later determined that the Proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to PSTA, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The Proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The Proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

During the term of the Contract the successful Proposer will be required to immediately notify PSTA of 1) any potential subcontractor that is subject to this provision and to submit the appropriate certification prior to award of a subcontract; 2) any information that its certification or certification of its subcontractors was erroneous when submitted; and 3) any information that certifications have become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

4.11 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) PARTICIPATION

In connection with the performance of this Contract, the successful Proposer agrees to cooperate with PSTA in meeting its commitments and goals with regard to maximum utilization of DBE. The policy and obligations for maximum utilization of DBE's are herein set forth:

- A) Policy: It is the policy of the Department of Transportation that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises, as defined in 49 CFR, Part 23, shall have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or apart with Federal funds under this Agreement. Consequently, the DBE requirements of 49 CFR, Part 23 apply to this Agreement.
- B) DBE Obligation: PSTA and Proposer agrees to ensure that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises, as defined in 49 CFR, Part 23, have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds provided under this Agreement. In this regard, PSTA or its consultants shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CF, Part 23, to ensure that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises have the maximum opportunity to compete for and to perform contracts. PSTA and its consultants shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of DOT-assisted contracts.

Requirements and goals for DBE participation in this Project are as follows:

While there is no minimum percentage goal established, firms are encouraged to utilize certified DBEs and compliance with the goal may be fulfilled by DBE's performing as either:

- A) A member of a joint venture as a prime consultant;
- B) An approved subcontractor;
- C) An owner-operator of equipment;
- D) A renter of equipment to a prime consultant;
- E) A firm manufacturing and supplying goods used in the project;
- F) A firm supplying goods used in the project (when supplying goods, only 60 percent will be counted).



If no DBE utilization is proposed, the Proposer must demonstrate that sufficient good faith efforts were made to meet the DBE contract goals and shall document the steps he has taken to obtain DBE participation.

Proposer's good faith efforts will include the following actions.

- A) Soliciting through all reasonable and available means the interest of all certified DBE's who have the capability to perform work under the contract. This shall include attendance at pre-proposal meetings, advertising and/or written notices. The Proposer shall allow sufficient time to allow the DBE's to respond to the solicitation.
- B) Selecting portions of the work to be performed by DBE's.
- C) Providing interested DBE's with adequate information about the plans, specifications, and requirements of the contract in a timely manner to assist them in responding to a solicitation.
- D) Negotiations in good faith with interested DBE's. It will be the responsibility of the Proposer to make a portion of the work available to DBE subcontractors and suppliers and to select those portions of the work or materials consistent with the available DBE's. Evidence of negotiations shall include the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of DBE's that were considered and a description of the information provided regarding the plans and specifications for the work selected for subcontractors, and evidence as to why additional agreements could not be reached for DBE's to perform the work.
- E) Not rejecting DBE's as being unqualified without sound reasons based on a thorough investigation of their capabilities.
- F) Efforts to assist interested DBE's in obtaining bonding, lines of credit, or insurance as required.
- G) Efforts to assist interested DBE's in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, materials, or related assistance or services.
- H) Use of services of available minority/women community organizations; minority/women contractors' groups; local, state, and federal minority/women business assistance offices; and other organizations that provide assistance in the recruitment and placement of DBE's.

The Proposer agrees not to terminate for convenience a DBE subcontractor, and then perform the work of the terminated subcontract with its own forces or those of an affiliate, without PSTA's prior written consent. When a DBE subcontractor is terminated, or fails to complete its work on the contract for any reason.

4.12 EXCLUSIONARY OR DISCRIMINATORY SPECIFICATIONS

PSTA agrees that it will comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. Section 5323(h)(2) by refraining from using any federal assistance awarded by the Federal Transit Administration to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications. PSTA further agrees to refrain from using state or local geographic preferences, except those expressly mandated or encouraged by federal statute.

4.13 FEDERAL LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

Per 49 CFR Part 20, Proposers shall complete and submit as part of their proposal the Certification of Restrictions on Lobbying for all projects when the total aggregate value of the contract exceeds \$100,000. The Proposer shall also submit a list of subcontracts and subcontractors that will exceed \$100,000. A Certification of Restrictions on Lobbying shall be submitted by the Proposer to PSTA for each listed subcontractor prior to contract award.



4.14 LOBBYING

Lobbying of any PSTA board member, officer, evaluation/selection committee member, employee, agent or attorney by a proposer, any member of the proposer's staff, any agent or representative of the proposer, whether compensated or not, or any person employed by any legal entity affiliated with or representing the proposer shall be prohibited on all competitive selection processes and contract awards, including but not limited to requests for proposals, requests for quotations, requests for qualification, invitation for bids, bids or the award of purchasing contracts of any type. Lobbying is strictly prohibited from the date of the advertisement or on a date otherwise established by the Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority Board of Directors, until either an award is final, any protest is finally resolved, or the competitive selection process is otherwise concluded.

The purposes of this prohibition is to protect the integrity of the procurement process by shielding it from undue influences prior to the contract award, a protest is resolved, or the competitive selection process is otherwise concluded. Nothing herein shall prohibit a proposer from contacting the purchasing division or PSTA's general counsel to address situations such as clarification and/or questions related to the procurement process or protest.

For the purposes of this Paragraph, lobbying shall mean influencing or attempting to influence action or non-action, and/or attempting to obtain the goodwill of persons specified herein relating to the selection, ranking, or contract award in connection with the proposal process through direct or indirect oral or written communication. Lobbying includes such actions whether performed by the proposer itself, any employee of the proposer, the proposer's attorney, agent or other paid or non-paid representative, or any person who performs such actions of behalf or at the behest of the proposer. Further, lobbying includes the attempt to influence Board members while they are performing their functions for other governmental entities (e.g.) a city or Pinellas County). The final award of the contract shall be the effective date of the contract.

Any board member, officer, evaluation/selection committee member, employee, agent or attorney who has been lobbied shall immediately report the lobbying activity to the Chief Executive Officer.

4.15 COLLUSION

Each Proposer must submit the Non-Collusion Affidavit form. Proposer certifies that its proposal is made without previous understanding, agreement, or connections with any person, firm, or corporation making a proposal for the same items and is in all respects fair, without outside control, collusion, fraud, or otherwise illegal action.

4.16 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Federal, state, county and local laws and ordinances, rules and regulations shall govern submittal and evaluation of proposals received and shall govern claims and disputes between Proposer(s) and PSTA by and through its officers, employees, authorized representatives, or any person, natural or otherwise. Lack of knowledge by Proposer is not a cognizable defense against legal effects.

4.17 EXCEPTIONS

Proposer is advised that if it wishes to take exception to any of the terms contained in this RFP, it must identify the term and the exception in its response to the procurement. Failure to do so may lead PSTA to declare any such term non-negotiable. Proposer's desire to take exception to a non-negotiable term will not disqualify it from consideration for award.



4.18 BONDING REQUIREMENTS

A) **Bond Requirements**

Bid Security

A Bond must be issued by a fully qualified surety company acceptable to PSTA and listed as a company currently authorized under 31 CFR, Part 223 as possessing a Certificate of Authority as described thereunder. Rights Reserved. In submitting this Bid, it is understood and agreed by bidder that the right is reserved by PSTA to reject any and all bids, or part of any, and it is agreed that the Bid may not be withdrawn for a period of [one hundred and eighty 180] days subsequent to the opening of bids, without the written consent of the PSTA. It is also understood and agreed that if the undersigned bidder should withdraw any part or all of his bid with [one hundred and eighty 180] days after the bid opening without the written consent of PSTA, shall refuse or be unable to enter into this Contract, as provided above, or refuse or be unable to furnish adequate and acceptable Performance Bonds and Labor and Material Payments Bonds, as provided above, or refuse or be unable to furnish adequate and acceptable insurance, as provided above, he shall enter into an agreement, or provide adequate security therefore.

It is further understood and agreed that to the extent the defaulting bidder's Bond, Certified Check, Cashier's Check, Treasurer's Check and/or Official Bank Check (excluding any income generated thereby which has been retained by the PSTA as provided in [Item x "Bid Security" of the Instructions to Bidders]) shall prove inadequate to fully recompense PSTA for the damages occasioned by default, then the undersigned bidder agrees to indemnify PSTA and pay over to PSTA the difference between the bid security and PSTA's total damages, so as to make PSTA whole.

The undersigned understands that any material alteration of any of the above or any of the material contained on this form, other than that requested will render the bid unresponsive.

B) Bid Bond:

- 1) The bidder shall furnish a bid bond at the bidders own expense at the time the bid is submitted to PSTA .The bid bond shall be five (5) percent of the total bid amount.
- 2) PSTA will consider a cashier's check, a letter of credit or certificate of deposit, (drawn payable to PSTA) from a Florida Bank with terms acceptable to PSTA, subject to the approval of PSTA's Chief Executive Officer, in lieu of a bid bond.

C) Performance and Payment Bonding Requirements (Construction):

The Contractor shall be required to obtain performance and payment bonds as follows:

Performance bonds: The penal amount of performance bonds shall be 100 percent of the original contract price, unless the PSTA determines that a lesser amount would be adequate for the protection of PSTA.

PSTA may require additional performance bond protection when a contract price is increased. The increase in protection shall generally equal 100 percent of the increase in contract price. PSTA may secure additional protection by directing the Contractor to increase the penal amount of the existing bond or to obtain an additional bond.

Payment bonds:

- 1) The Penal amount of the payment bonds shall equal:
 - a) Fifty percent of the contract price if the contract price is not more than \$1 million.



- b) Forty percent of the contract price if the contract price is more than \$1 million but not more than \$5 million; or
- c) Two and one half million dollars if the contract price is more that \$5 million.
- 2) If the original contract price is \$5 million or less, PSTA may require additional protection as required by subparagraph 1 if the contract is increased.

D) Advanced Payment Bonding Requirements:

The Contractor may be required to obtain an advance payment bond if the contract contains an advance payment provision and a performance bond is not furnished. PSTA shall determine the amount of the advance payment bond necessary to protect the PSTA.

- Patent Infringement Bonding Requirements (Patent Indemnity):
 The Contractor may be required to obtain a patent indemnity bond if a performance bond is not furnished and the financial responsibility of the Contractor is unknown or doubtful. PSTA shall determine the amount of the patent indemnity to protect PSTA.
- 2) Warranty of the Work and Maintenance Bonds:
 - a) The Contractor warrants to PSTA, the Architect and/or Engineer that all materials and equipment furnished under this Contract will be of highest quality and new unless otherwise specified by PSTA, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract Documents. All work not so conforming to these standards shall be considered defective. If required by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.
 - b) The work furnished must of first quality and the workmanship must be the best obtainable in the various trades. The Work must be of safe, substantial and durable construction in all respects. The Contractor hereby guarantees the Work against defective materials or faulty workmanship for a minimum period of one (1) year after Final Payment by PSTA and shall replace or repair any defective materials or equipment or faulty workmanship during the period of the guarantee at no cost to PSTA. As additional security for these guarantees, the Contractor shall, prior to the release of Final Payment [as provided in Item X below], furnish separate Maintenance (or Guarantee) Bonds in form acceptable to PSTA written by the same corporate surety that provides the Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond for this Contract. These bonds shall secure the Contractor's obligation to replace or repair defective materials and faulty workmanship for a minimum period of one (1) year after Final Payment and shall be written in an amount equal to ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%) of the CONTRACT SUM, as adjusted (if at all).



4.19 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit proposals of a public building or public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a Contractor, Supplier, Subcontractor, or Consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, for Category two for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. PSTA may make inquiries regarding alleged convictions of public entity crimes. The unreasonable failure of a Proposer to promptly supply information in connection with an inquiry may be grounds for rejection of a proposal. Additionally, a conviction of a public entity crime may cause the rejection of a proposal.

4.20 "OR EQUAL" DETERMINATION

Where proposing other than specified, the determination of equivalency will be at the sole discretion of PSTA. Proposer shall, as to each item, propose upon the specified products or upon an alternate product which is "equal" as defined herein. The offer of an alternate product for any item shall, for the purpose of evaluation of proposals, be construed as a refusal to propose upon the product specified. Only one alternate product for each item shall be submitted. In the event an alternate product is submitted for any item, the Proposer shall cross out the product specified and type or print the work "ALTERNATE" (failure to do so shall be construed as a proposal upon the product specified) and insert the unit price and the extension or total (unit price multiplied by the number of units) in the columns provided therefore in the same manner as if proposing upon the specified product. In the event any alternate product is submitted the Proposer shall state on additional attached sheets, the precise specifications of the alternate and all of the differences in specifications between the specified product and the alternate products and sketches or blueprints to scale sufficiently accurate, complete, and detailed as to enable PSTA to make a complete determination of the quality of the alternate. Failure to submit this information in full will constitute basis for determination by PSTA that the alternate submitted is not equal to the product specified as a standard.

4.21 MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEETS

In complying with Florida's "Right to Know" Law, PSTA requires the Proposer submit Material Safety Data Sheets on any hazardous chemical or substances supplied. Failure to supply MSDS's sheets may result in bid disqualification.

4.22 ORDER OF WORK

If Section 2 provides a sequence or order of the work to be completed, the Proposer shall follow the sequence of operations set forth therein. Full compensation for conforming to such requirements will be considered as included in the prices paid for the various items of the work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

NOTE: ANY AND ALL SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS ATTACHED HERETO WHICH VARY FROM THESE GENERAL CONDITIONS SHALL HAVE PRECEDENCE.

4.23 CONTRACT

Upon award, Proposer agrees to enter into and execute the contract set forth in Section 5. The awarded Contractor(s) shall fully sign the Agreement and send it back to PSTA for signatures within five (5) calendar days of receipt of notification of the award by the PSTA Board of Directors.



SECTION 5: CONTRACT

AGREEMENT TO FURNISH BUS SHELTER AND AMENITIES

	S AGREEMENT is made on, by and between the Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority ("PSTA"),
	independent special district with its principal place of business located at 3201 Scherer Drive, St.
	ersburg, Florida, and ("Contractor"), a with its
prii	ncipal place of business located at(collectively, the "Parties").
	IEREAS, PSTA issued a Request for Proposal No. 15-004P for Bus Shelter and Amenities on December 15, 14; and
	IEREAS, Contractor submitted a Proposal to PSTA's RFP on or before January 27, 2015 ("Contractor's sponse"); and
	IEREAS, PSTA's Board of Directors awarded the RFP to Contractor at its Board of Directors Meeting on, and the parties wish to set forth the terms and conditions of their agreement for otal amount not to exceed \$ (the "Contract Total").
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	W THEREFORE, the parties in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein stained, the adequacy of which is acknowledged by the Parties, agree as follows:
1.	RECITALS . The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by reference.
2.	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The "Contract Documents" shall mean and refer to this Agreement, PSTA's Request For Proposals for Bus Shelter and Amenities and all exhibits attached thereto including all duly executed and issued addenda (referred to herein as the "RFP" and attached hereto as Exhibit A), and Contractor's Response to the RFP (attached hereto as Exhibit B). All of the foregoing are incorporated herein by reference and are made a part of this Agreement. In interpreting this Agreement and resolving any ambiguities or conflicts between this Agreement and the Exhibits, this Agreement takes precedence over the Exhibits and any inconsistency between exhibits will be resolved in the following order:
	Exhibit A RFP
	Exhibit B Contractor's Response
3.	SCOPE OF SERVICES . Contractor, at the direction of PSTA, shall in accordance with the specifications, tasks, and scope of work set forth in Exhibit A (the "Project"). It is the sole responsibility of Contractor to read the specifications and understand them.
4.	EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM OF AGREEMENT . This Agreement shall become effective and commence on the date of award by PSTA's Board of Director's ("Effective Date") and <u>shall remain in effect for three (3) twelve month years with two (2) twelve month renewals, but shall not exceed (5) five years.</u>
5.	TERMS OF PERFORMANCE.

5.01 Time for Completion. [if applicable] Contractor shall commence work on the Project immediately upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall complete the Project, and all tasks associated therewith as required and agreed upon after award of the proposal with the selected contractor and the PSTA project manager.



5.02 Representatives. Prior to the start of any work on the Project, Contractor shall designate a primary and alternate representative, who will have management responsibility for the Project and who have authority to act on technical matters and resolve problems with the Project and the Contract Documents, to PSTA in writing. Such designation shall include the contact information (including phone numbers) of Contractor's representative. PSTA will advise Contractor in writing of the personnel who will represent PSTA in the administration of the Contract Documents. Such writing from PSTA will include the specific duties of each individual and each representative's limits of authority.

5.03 Non-exclusive Contract. PSTA specifically reserves the right to contract with other entities for the services described in the Contract Documents or for similar services if it deems, in its sole discretion, such action to be in PSTA's best interest.

5.04 Status Reports: Contractor shall submit [monthly] written status reports to PSTA outlining the status of the Project to date throughout the term of this Agreement. Each status report shall be a concise narrative description of activities to date and planned activities until the next status report. A final report, one (1) original and two copies, shall be submitted by Contractor upon completion of the Project.

5.05 Reviews: Until the completion of the Project and the final payment therefore by PSTA, Contractor shall allow representatives of PSTA to visit the offices and other places of Contractor's work periodically without prior notice to monitor Contractor's work completed or progress on the Project. The Parties agree that if either party deems it advisable to hold either a conference or any inspection of work in progress, all parties will be notified and may participate.

5.06 Contractor Responsibility: Contractor shall provide services of first quality, and the workmanship must be in accordance with customary standards of the various trades and industries involved in the Project. The Project and the services associated therewith shall be high-quality in all respects. No advantage will be taken by Contractor in the omission of any part or detail of the Project. Contractor hereby assumes responsibility for all materials, equipment, and processes used in the Project, whether the same is manufactured by Contractor or purchased readymade from a source outside Contractor's company.

5.07 Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall be solely responsible for compliance with all federal, state, county, and local laws, rules and/or regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities including those set forth in this Agreement and that, in any manner, could bear on the provision of the Project and Contractor's services under the Contract Documents including, but not limited to all rules and regulations related to safety and compliance therewith. PSTA and PSTA's Project Manager will communicate directly with the Contractor's project superintendent and shall have no authority to direct, oversee, or instruct the Contractor's employees, subcontractors, or materialmen, or any other individuals performing work on the Project. Omission of any applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, standards or orders by PSTA in the Contract Documents shall be construed as an oversight and shall not relieve Contractor of its obligations to comply with such laws fully and completely. Upon request, Contractor shall furnish to PSTA certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and licenses required for performance under the contract and completion of the Project.

6. COMPENSATION. In consideration of Contractor's faithful performance of the Contract Documents, PSTA agrees to pay Contractor in accordance with the amounts proposal and set forth in Exhibit B. However, all payments to Contractor individually and in the aggregate shall not exceed the Contract Total. Payment



shall be made only for work which is actually performed and approved by PSTA. Contractor shall submit invoices to PSTA no later than the fifteenth (15) day of the month immediately following the month in which the work or services were completed. PSTA will make payment in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act.

6.01 Invoices. All invoices shall be submitted in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act with all details prescribed by PSTA, and delivered to the following address:

Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority
Attention: Finance Department/Accounts Payable
Purchase Order #: _____
3201 Scherer Drive
St. Petersburg, Florida 33716

Or via E-Mail: Accountspayable@psta.net

6.02 Payment Due Date. Payment due date is calculated from time PSTA Accounts Payable Accountant has received and accepted the invoice per 218.73. Payment due date for purchase of goods or services other than construction services is 45 days from the accepted date, 218.74. Invoices must have the PSTA Purchase Order Number on them in order to be considered a proper invoice.

6.03 Disputed Invoices. In the event of a disputed invoice, only that portion so contested will be withheld from payment and the undisputed portion will be paid.

6.04 Subcontractor Payments. In accordance with 49 CFR Part 26.29, Contractor shall pay each subcontractor or subcontractor for satisfactory performance of its contract with the subcontractor or subcontractor no later than thirty (30) days from the receipt of each payment Contractor receives from PSTA. Contractor shall further return retainage payments to each subcontractor or subcontractor within thirty (30) days after the subcontractor's or subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. Contractor shall include as part of its contract or agreement with each subcontractor or subcontractor for work and material a "Prompt Payment Clause". The Prompt Payment Clause shall require payment to all subcontractors and subcontractors, not only DBEs, for all labor and material for work completed within thirty (30) days of receipt of progress payments from PSTA for said work. The Prompt Payment Clause shall further stipulate the return of retainage within 30 days after the subcontractor or subcontractor achieves the specified work as verified by payment from PSTA.

6.05 *Disputes with Subcontractor Payments*. Any disputes that arise regarding the satisfactory completion of work by a subcontractor or subcontractor may be brought to the attention of PSTA, who will make a determination. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above-referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval from PSTA. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

6.06 Failure to Abide by DBE Requirements. Failure by Contractor to carry out the requirements of PSTA's DBE Program and the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, and/or timely return of retainage, without just cause, is a material breach of this Agreement, which may result in PSTA withholding payment from Contractor until all delinquent payments have been made (no interest will be paid for the period that payment was withheld), termination of this Agreement, or other such remedy as PSTA deems appropriate.

7. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The Contract Documents, including the scope, specification, and details of the Project may only be modified by written agreement of the Parties.



7.01 Expansion or Modification of Project. Except as provided in Section 7.02 below, in the event that PSTA requires a reduction, expansion, or modification of the Project, PSTA shall issue a written notification to Contractor, which specifies such reduction, expansion, or modification. Within fifteen (15) days after the date of the written notification, Contractor shall provide PSTA with a detailed cost and schedule proposal for the work to be performed or to be reduced. This proposal shall be accepted by PSTA or modified by negotiations between Contractor and PSTA and, thereafter, a modification agreement shall be executed in writing by the Parties and shall become a part of the Contract Documents.

7.02 Written Change Orders within the Project. Notwithstanding Section 7.01, above, PSTA may at any time, by written order, make changes within the scope of the work to be performed by Contractor under the Contract Documents. However, no such written order shall serve to increase the Contract Total or give Contractor any claim for monies in addition to the Contract Total. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the estimated cost of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the work under the Contract Documents, whether or not changed by the order, Contractor shall notify PSTA within thirty (30) days in writing. In the case of an increase to the Contract Total, the written notice shall state in all capital, bold letters that PSTA's written order would result in an increase in the Contract Total. Such notice must be submitted and approved prior to performing any work in accordance with the written order or changes made by PSTA. Upon receipt of such notice, PSTA will endeavor to make such adjustments as are appropriate and equitable and the Parties may modify this Agreement in writing. Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute within the meaning of Section 39. Disputes, Breaches, Defaults, or other Litigation.

7.03 No Stoppage of Work. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this clause shall excuse Contractor from proceeding with the Agreement as changed except for those changes which would increase the Contract Total.

7.04 *No Increase in Costs.* No services for which an additional cost or fee will be charged by Contractor shall be furnished without the prior express written authorization of PSTA.

7.05 Representative. The PSTA Project Manager, Director of Finance, or CEO are the only PSTA representatives authorized to make changes within this Section, and only if such change is not noted as a limitation of the PSTA representative. Any instructions, written or oral, given to Contractor by someone other than the PSTA designated representative, that represent a change in the Project or any of its terms, will not be considered as an authorized change. Any action on the part of Contractor taken in compliance with such instructions will not be grounds for subsequent payment or other consideration in compliance with the unauthorized change.

8. WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS.

8.01 Patent, Trademark, Copyright, and Trade Secret. Contractor warrants that the Project, and all goods and services associated therewith do not infringe on any patent, trademark, copyright or trade secret of any third parties and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold PSTA, its officers, agents, employees, trustees and its successors and assigns, harmless from and against any and all liabilities, loss, damage or expense, including, without limitation, court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of any infringement or claims of infringement of any patent, trade name, trademark, copyright or trade secret by reason of the sale or use of any goods or services purchased under this Agreement. PSTA shall promptly notify Contractor of any such claim. PSTA makes no warranty that the production, sale or use of goods or services under this Agreement will not give rise to any such claim and PSTA shall not be liable to Contractor for any such claim brought against Contractor.



8.02 Covenants against Gratuities. Contractor warrants that he or she has not offered or given gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) to any official or employee of PSTA with a view toward securing favorable treatment in the awarding, amending, or evaluating performance of contract.

9. ASSIGNABILITY AND SUBCONTRACTING. The terms and provisions of the Contract Documents shall be binding upon PSTA and Contractor their respective partners, successors, heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and legal representatives.

9.01 Written Approval Required. The rights and obligations of Contractor may not be transferred, assigned, sublet, mortgaged, pledged or otherwise disposed of or encumbered in any way without PSTA's prior written consent. Contractor may subcontract a portion of its obligations to other firms or parties but only after having first obtained the written approval of the subcontractor by PSTA.

9.02 *Responsibility for Subcontractors.* If Contractor's assignee or subcontractor fails to perform in accordance with the terms of its assignment or subcontract, Contractor shall complete or pay to have completed the work which the assignee or Subcontractor failed to complete at no additional cost to PSTA. In the event of any noncompliance by any of the subcontractors, Contractor shall be directly and wholly responsible for the noncompliance and shall bear all attributable costs.

9.03 Assignment by PSTA. PSTA may assign its rights and obligations under the Contract Documents to any successor to the rights and functions of PSTA or to any governmental agency to the extent required by applicable laws or governmental regulations or to the extent PSTA deems necessary or advisable under the circumstances.

9.04 *E-Verify*. Contractor shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify System to verify the employment eligibility of: (a) all persons employed by Contractor throughout the term of this Agreement; and (b) all persons, including subcontractors, retained or hired by Contractor, regardless of compensation, to perform work on the services provided pursuant to the Contract Documents.

9.05 Provision for other agencies: Unless otherwise stipulated by the proposer, the proposer agrees to make available to all government agencies, departments, authorities, and municipalities the proposal prices submitted in accordance with said proposal terms and conditions therein, should any said governmental entity desire to buy under this proposal. Eligible Users shall mean all state of Florida agencies, the legislative and judicial branches, political subdivisions (counties, local district school boards, community colleges, municipalities, transit authorities, or other public agencies or authorities), which may desire to purchase under the terms and conditions of the contract.

10. DELAY IN PERFORMANCE/FORCE MAJEURE.

10.01 Time of the Essence. The timely receipt of services and deliveries to PSTA is essential. If the Project and all deliverables are not received on time, PSTA may cancel the unfilled portion of this Agreement for cause, purchase substitute requirements elsewhere, and recover from Contractor any increased costs and damages thereby incurred by PSTA.

10.02 Force Majeure. Contractor shall be entitled to a reasonable extension of time from PSTA for the delays resulting from damage to Contractor's and/or PSTA's property caused by fire, lightning, earthquakes, tornadoes, and other extreme weather conditions, power failures, riots, acts of war, strikes or lockouts beyond the control of Contractor and its subcontractors ("Force Majeure"). Any delay other



than one mentioned above shall constitute a breach of Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents.

10.03 Unavoidable Delay. If delivery of the Project, and all deliverables thereunder, is unavoidably delayed, PSTA may extend the time for completion for a determined number of days of excusable delay. A delay is unavoidable only if the delay was not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during Contractor's performance; was not caused directly or substantially by negligent errors, omissions, or mistakes of Contractor, its subcontractors, or its suppliers or their agents; was substantial; and, in fact, caused Contractor to miss delivery dates and could not adequately have been guarded against by contractual or legal means.

10.04 No Damages for Delay. Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim for damages on account of hindrances or delays in the work from any cause whatsoever, including any delays or hindrances caused by PSTA. This paragraph shall include, but not be limited to, any actions which result in delays in scheduling, substantial changes in scope of the Project or substantial increases in the costs of performing the work under the Contract Documents.

10.05 Notification. Contractor will notify PSTA as soon as Contractor has, or should have, knowledge that an event has occurred which will delay completion of the Project. Within five (5) working days, Contractor will confirm such notice in writing, furnishing as much detail as is available and including any request for extension of time. Contractor shall supply, as soon as such data is available, any reasonable proofs that are required by PSTA to make a decision on any request for extension. PSTA will examine the request and any documents supplied by Contractor and will determine if Contractor is entitled to an extension and the duration of such extension. PSTA will notify Contractor of its decision in writing. It is expressly understood and agreed that Contractor will not be entitled to any extension and the granting of such extension is in the sole discretion of PSTA. It is further expressly understood that Contractor shall not be entitled to any damages or compensation, and will not be reimbursed for any losses, on account of delays resulting from any cause.

11. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause in accordance with the provisions below.

11.01 Without Cause. If PSTA determines that it is in its best interest to do so, PSTA may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days' written notice to Contractor. If PSTA terminates this Agreement pursuant to this subsection, Contractor shall promptly submit to PSTA its costs to be paid on work performed up to the time of termination. If Contractor has any property belonging to PSTA in its possession, Contractor shall account for the same and dispose of it as directed by PSTA.

11.02 With Cause. PSTA may terminate this Agreement with cause at any time immediately upon written notice to Contractor, if: (1) Contractor fails to fulfill or abide by any of the terms or conditions specified in the Contract Documents; (2) Contractor fails to perform in the manner called for in the Contract Documents; or (3) Contractor does not provide services in accordance with the requirements of the specifications in the Contract Documents. In its sole discretion, PSTA may allow Contractor an appropriately short period of time in which to cure a defect in performance or non-performance. In such case, PSTA's written notice of termination to Contractor shall state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions, if applicable. Contractor may terminate this Agreement for cause if PSTA fails to fulfill or abide by any duties or conditions specified in the Contract Documents, provided that Contractor must first provide notice of the alleged breach to PSTA and give PSTA thirty (30) days written notice to cure the alleged breach. If PSTA cures the alleged breach or is making a good faith



effort to cure said breach during the thirty (30) day cure period, Contractor may not terminate this Agreement.

11.03 Re-procurement. Should this Agreement be terminated by PSTA for cause under this Section, Contractor shall be liable for all expenses incurred by PSTA in reprocuring elsewhere the same or similar items or services offered by Contractor.

11.04 Force Majeure. If it is later determined by PSTA that Contractor's failure to perform was a result of a Force Majeure, PSTA may allow Contractor to continue performance under a new time for performance or treat the termination as if terminated without cause under Section 13(a) of this Agreement.

11.05 Appropriation. In the event PSTA, in its sole discretion, determines that sufficient budgeted funds are not available to appropriate for payments due to Contractor under this Agreement, PSTA shall notify Contractor of such occurrence and this Agreement shall terminate on the last day of the current fiscal period without any penalty or expense to PSTA.

11.06 Waiver of Remedies for any Breach. In the event that PSTA elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Agreement, such waiver by PSTA shall only be valid if set forth in writing and shall not limit PSTA's remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement.

12. DISPUTES, BREACHES, DEFAULTS, OR OTHER LITIGATION.

12.01 Disputes. Disputes arising in the performance of this Agreement, which are not resolved by amicably by the Parties, shall be decided in writing by PSTA's authorized representative. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of its copy, Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to PSTA's Chief Executive Officer. In connection with any such appeal, Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of PSTA's Chief Executive Officer shall be binding upon Contractor and Contractor shall abide by the decision.

12.02 Performance During Dispute. Unless otherwise directed by PSTA, Contractor shall continue performance under this Agreement while matters in dispute are being resolved.

12.03 Claims for Damages: Should either party suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of its employees, agents or others for whose acts it is legally liable, a claim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury or damage.

12.04 Rights and Remedies: The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by PSTA or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under this Agreement, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

12.05 Attorneys' Fees. In the event of legal action or other proceeding arising under this Agreement, PSTA shall be entitled to recover from Contractor all its reasonable attorneys' fees and cost incurred by PSTA in the prosecution or defense of such action, or in any post-judgment or collection proceedings and whether



incurred before suit, at the trial level or at the appellate level. This shall include any bankruptcy proceedings filed by or against Contractor. PSTA also shall be entitled to recover any reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred in litigating the entitlement to attorneys' fees and costs, as well as in determining the amount of attorneys' fees and costs due to PSTA. The reasonable costs to which PSTA will be entitled include costs that are taxable under any applicable statute, rule, or guideline, as well as costs of investigation, copying costs, electronic discovery costs, mailing and delivery charges, costs of conducting legal research, consultant and expert witness fees, travel expenses, court reporter fees and mediator fees, regardless of whether such costs are taxable under any applicable statue, rule or guideline.

13. INDEMNIFICATION

13.01 Indemnification. The parties recognize that Contractor is an independent contractor. Contractor agrees to assume liability for and indemnify, hold harmless, and defend PSTA, its board members, officers, employees, agents and attorneys of, from, and against all liability and expense, including reasonable attorneys' fees, in connection with any and all claims, demands, damages, actions, causes of action, and suits in equity of whatever kind or nature, including claims for personal injury, property damage, equitable relief, or loss of use, arising out of the execution, performance, nonperformance, or enforcement of this Agreement, whether or not due to or caused by the negligence of PSTA, its board members, officers, employees, agents, and/or attorneys excluding only the sole negligence of PSTA, its officers, employees, agents, and attorneys. This includes claims made by the employees of Contractor against PSTA, and Contractor hereby waives its entitlement, if any, to immunity under Section 440.11, Florida Statutes. Contractor's liability hereunder shall include all attorneys' fees and costs incurred by PSTA in the enforcement of this indemnification provision. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, this indemnification provision shall not be construed as a waiver of any immunity from or limitation of liability to which PSTA is entitled to pursuant to the doctrine of sovereign immunity or Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. The obligations contained in this provision shall survive termination of this Agreement, however terminated, and shall not be limited by the amount of any insurance required to be obtained or maintained under this Agreement.

13.02 Control of Defense. Subject to the limitations set forth is this provision, Contractor shall assume control of the defense of any claim asserted by a third party against PSTA arising from or in any way related to this Agreement and, in connection with such defenses, shall appoint lead counsel, in each case at Contractor's expense. Contractor shall have the right, at its option, to participate in the defense of any third party claim, without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations hereunder. If Contractor assumes control of the defense of any third party claim in accordance with this paragraph, Contractor shall obtain the prior written consent of PSTA before entering into any settlement of such claim. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this provision, Contractor shall not assume or maintain control of the defense of any third party claim, but shall pay the fees of counsel retained by PSTA and all expenses including experts' fees, if (i) an adverse determination with respect to the third party claim would, in the good faith judgment of PSTA, be detrimental in any material respect of PSTA's reputation; (ii) the third party claim seeks an injunction or equitable relief against PSTA; or (iii) Contractor has failed or is failing to prosecute or defend vigorously the third party claim. Each party shall cooperate, and cause its agents to cooperate, in the defense or prosecution of any third party claim and shall furnish or cause to be furnished such records and information, and attend such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trials, or appeals, as may be reasonably requested in connection therewith.



14. INSURANCE

14.01 Insurance. Before beginning work (including pre-staging personnel and material), the Contractor shall obtain insurance at his expense. Delays in commencement due to failure to provide satisfactory evidence shall not extend deadlines. Any penalties and failure to perform assessments shall be imposed as portion of the work in this contract, either the Contractor shall name those Subcontractors as "additional insurers" or each Subcontractors shall be required to have the same insurance requirements as the Contractor. Insurance must be maintained throughout the entire term. Failure to do so may result in suspension of all work until insurance has been reinstated or replaced. Delays in completing work resulting from failure of the Contractor to maintain insurance shall not extend deadlines. Any penalties and failure to perform assessments shall be imposed as if the work had not been suspended. Coverage shall be provided by a company (ies) authorized to do business in the State of Florida. The company (ies) must maintain a minimum rating of A- as assigned by AM Best. If the Contractor has been approved by the State Department of Labor, as an authorized self-insurer for Workers' Compensation, PSTA shall recognize and honor such status. The Contractor may be required to submit a Letter of Authorization issued by the Department of Labor and a Certificate of Insurance, providing details on the contractor's Excess Insurance Program. If the Contractor participates in a self-insurance fund, updated financial statements may be required upon request. The Contractor shall provide to PSTA's Purchasing Division satisfactory evidence of the required insurance, either:

- A Certificate of Insurance with an insurance endorsement or (if over 25,000 formal proposals)
- A Certified copy of the actual insurance policy.

PSTA, at its sole option, has the right to request a certified copy of policies required by this contract. Certificate of Insurance and policies must specify they are not subject to cancel, non-renewal, material change, or reduce coverage unless at least 30 days notice is given to PSTA. The acceptance and approval of the Contractor's Insurance shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor from liability or obligation assumed under this contract or imposed by law. PSTA, its employees and officers, will be included as "Additional Insured" on all policies, except Workers' Compensation.

14.02 Project Specific Requirements. The following policies and minimum coverage's shall be maintained throughout the entire term of this Agreement:

<u>Commercial General Liability</u> with, at minimum:

- Premises Operations
- Products and Completed Operations
- Blanket Contractual Liability
- Personal Injury Liability
- Expanded Definition of Property Damage

The minimum limits shall be \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit (CSL)

An Occurrence Form policy is preferred. If coverage is a Claims Made policy, provisions should include coverage for claims filed on or after the effective date of this contract. In addition, the period for which claims may be reported should extend for a minimum of twelve (12) months following the expiration of the contract.



<u>Vehicle Liability</u> – Recognizing that the work governed by this contract requires the use of vehicles, the Contractor, prior to the commencement of work, shall obtain Vehicle Liability Insurance. Coverage shall be maintained throughout the life of the contract and include, as a minimum, liability coverage for:

 Owned, Non-owned, and Hired Vehicles with minimum limits at \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit (CSL)

<u>Workers' Compensation</u> – Prior to beginning work, Contractor shall obtain Workers' Compensation Insurance with limits sufficient to meet Florida Statute 440. Contractor shall maintain throughout, Employers' Liability Insurance with limits no less than:

- \$500,000 Bodily Injury by Accident
- \$500,000 Bodily Injury by Disease, policy limits
- \$500,000 Bodily Injury by Disease, each employee
- **15. FEDERAL PROVISIONS.** As used in this Section, "the Government" shall mean and refer to the Federal government of the United States of America.

15.01 Buy America Requirements. The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) and 49 CFR, Part 661, which provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA-funded projects are produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 CFR 661.7, and include final assembly in the United States for 15 passenger vans and 15 passenger wagons produced by Chrysler Corporation, microcomputer equipment, software, and small purchases (currently less than \$100,000) made with capital, operating, or planning funds. Separate requirements for rolling stock are set out at 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 CFR 661.11. Rolling stock not subject to a general waiver must be manufactured in the United States and have a 60 percent domestic content. A Proposer or offeror must submit to PSTA the appropriate Buy America certification with all proposals on FTA-funded contracts, except those subject to a general waiver. Proposals or offers that are not accompanied Buy America certification must be rejected as nonresponsive. This requirement does not apply to lower tier subcontractors.

15.02 Fly America

The Contractor understands and agrees that the Federal Government will not participate in the costs of international air transportation of any person involved in or property acquired for the Project unless that air transportation is provided by U.S.-flag carriers to the extent services by U.S.-flag carriers is available, consistent with the requirements of the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974f. as amended, 49 U.S.C. § 40118, and U.S. General Services Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations "Use of United States Flag Air Carriers." 41 CFR §§ 301.131 through 301.143.

15.03 Cargo Preference Requirements

The Contractor agrees:

- A) To use privately owned United States–Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to the underlying contract to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag commercial vessels;
- B) To furnish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of leading for shipments originating outside



the United States, a legible copy of a rated, "on-board" commercial bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, D.C. 20590 and to PSTA (through the Contractor in the case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.)

C) To include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract when the subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, material or commodities by ocean vessel.

15.04 Access to Records and Reports

The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract:

- A) The Contractor agrees to provide PSTA, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 CFR 663.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or his authorized representatives including any PMO Contractor access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.
- B) Where PSTA enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or under the simplified acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital or other non-profit organization and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 CFR 19.48, Contractor agrees to provide PSTA, FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized representatives with access to any books, documents, papers and record of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.
- C) Where PSTA is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1) through other than competitive solicitation the Contractor shall make available records related to the contract to PSTA, the Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.
- D) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- E) The Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until PSTA, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto. Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11).
- F) FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

15.05 Changes to Federal Requirements

Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Agreement (Form FTA MA (2) dated October, 1995) between PSTA and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.



15.06 Prevention of Substance Abuse by Safety Sensitive Employees.

- a. Drug Abuse: To the extent that Contractor, any subcontractor at any tier, or their employees, perform a safety sensitive function under the project, Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of each affected subcontractor at any tier, and their employees with U.S. DOT regulations, "Drug-Free Workplace Requirements (Grants)," 49 CFR Part 29, Subpart F, as modified by 41 U.S.C. subsection 712 et seq.
- b. Alcohol Abuse: To the extent that Contractor, any subcontractor at any tier, or their employees, perform a safety sensitive function under the project, Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of each affected subcontractor at any tier, and their employees with FTA regulations, "Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations," 49 CFR Part 655.

15.07 Access to Records.

- a. In accordance with 49 U.S.C. Section 5325(a), Contractor agrees to provide PSTA, the FTA Administrator, the U.S. Secretary of Transportation, the Comptroller General of the United States, or their duly authorized representatives with access to all books, documents, papers and records of Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.
- b. Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- c. Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Agreement for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this Agreement, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Agreement, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until PSTA, the FTA Administrator, the U.S. Secretary of Transportation, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto. Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11).
- d. Contractor agrees to include the above clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the Subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.
- e. Project close out does not alter these requirements.

15.08 Reports and Record Retention.

- a. Reports: Contractor agrees to provide to the Federal Transit Administration those reports required by U.S. DOT's grant management rules and any other reports the federal government may require.
- b. Record Retention: Contractor agrees that, during the course of the project and for three years thereafter, it will maintain intact and readily accessible all data, documents, reports, records, contracts, and supporting materials relating to the project as the federal government may require for the project.



15.09 Exclusionary or Discriminator Specifications. PSTA agrees that it will comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. Section 5323(h)(2) by refraining from using any federal assistance awarded by the Federal Transit Administration to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications. PSTA further agrees to refrain from using state or local geographic preferences, except those expressly mandated or encouraged by federal statute.

15.10 False or Fraudulent Statements and Claims. Contractor acknowledges and agrees as follows:

- a. Contractor recognizes that the requirements of the Program Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. subsection 3801 et seq. and U.S. Department of Transportation regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR Part 31, apply to its activities in connection with the project. Accordingly, by signing the contract, Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement it has made, it makes, or it may make pertaining to the contract. In addition to other penalties that may apply, Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes a false, fictitious or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the federal government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, on Contractor to the extent the federal government deems appropriate.
- b. Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes a false, fictitious or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the federal government in connection with an urbanized area formula project financed with federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. section 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose on Contractor the penalties of 18 U.S.C. section 1001 and 49 U.S.C. section 5307 (n) (1).
- 15.11 No Federal Government Obligations to Third Parties. Contractor agrees that, absent the federal government's express written consent, the federal government shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to any sub-recipient, any third party consultant, or any person not a party to the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement in connection with the performance of the Project. Notwithstanding that the federal government may have concurred in or approved any solicitation, sub-agreement, or third party contract, the federal government has no obligations or liabilities to any party, including any sub-recipient or any third party consultant.
- 15.12 Interest of Members of or Delegates to Congress. No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or to receive any benefit there from.
- 15.13 Lobbying Certification. During the term of this Agreement Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of 31 USC section 1352, which prohibit the use of Federal funds for lobbying by any official or employee of any Federal agency, or member of employee of Congress; and requires Contractor to disclose any lobbying of any official or employee of any Federal agency, or member or employee of Congress in connection with Federal assistance. Contractor agrees to comply with U.S. DOT regulations, "New Restrictions On Lobbying", 49 CFR Part 20 and include these requirements in any subcontract which exceeds \$100,000.
 - a. Contractor and all Subcontractors in receipt of contracts exceeding \$100,000 shall submit Standard Form LLL quarterly to PSTA. Contractor shall also submit with each request for payment 1) a list of each contractor and Subcontractor that is subject to the Lobbying



Certification, 2) certifications or evidence of certification for all Subcontractors, 3) information regarding material changes in the previous certifications or disclosures, and, 4) Standard Form LLL or evidence that the form was previously submitted to PSTA.

b. PSTA will not make any payment to Contractor or a subcontractor which 1) does not comply with this Section, or, 2) is not in compliance with the above-cited federal requirements.

15.14 Debarment and Suspension. Contractor agrees to comply with U. S. Department of Transportation regulations, "Government Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)", 49 CFR Part 29, and otherwise comply with the requirements of those regulations. This includes the requirement of Contractor to submit the Certification Of Primary Consultant Regarding Debarment, Suspension, And Other Responsibility Matter for all projects when the total aggregate value of the Contract exceeds \$100,000 and to submit a Certification Of Lower Tier Participation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusions for each Subcontractor which will have a financial interest in this Project which exceeds \$25,000 or will have a critical influence on or a substantive control over the Project.

- a. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to immediately notify PSTA of any potential subcontractor that is subject to this provision and to submit the appropriate certification prior to award of a subcontract; and any information that its certification or certification of its subcontractors was erroneous when submitted; and any information that certifications have become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- b. Contractor shall submit with each request for payment a list of all subcontractors performing work under the Contract Documents which have a financial interest in the Project which exceeds \$25,000 or have had a critical influence on or substantive control over the Project and submit evidence that the appropriate certificate has been submitted and that they remain valid.
- c. PSTA will not make payment to Contractor or a Subcontractor that does not comply with this Section, or is not in compliance with the above-cited federal requirements.

15.15 Environmental, Resource Conservation and Energy Requirements.

a. Environmental Protection: Contractor agrees to comply with applicable requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, 42 USC §§ 4321 et seq.; section 14 of the Federal Transit Act, as amended, 49 USC app. §§ 1610; Council on Environmental Quality regulations, 40 CFR Part 1500 et seq.; and joint FHWA/FTA regulations, "Environmental Impact And Related Procedures" at 23 CFR Part 771 and 49 CFR Part 622.

b. Clean Air:

- 1. Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. Contractor agrees to report each violation to PSTA and understands and agrees that PSTA will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.
- 2. Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.



- c. Clean Water: Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable Federal laws and regulations in accordance with applicable Federal directives implementing the Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. § § 1251 through 1377. Specifically:
 - i. Contractor agrees to protect underground sources of drinking water as provided by the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § §300f through 300j-6.
 - ii. Contractor agrees to comply with the notice of violating facility provisions of section 508 of the Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. § 1368, and facilitate compliance with Executive Order No. 11738, "Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans," 42 U.S.C. § 7606 note.
 - iii. Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.
- d. Seismic Safety: Contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent required by the regulation. Contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this Agreement including work performed by a Subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.
- e. Historic Preservation: Contractor agrees to assist the Government (FTA) to comply with section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, 16 USC § 470f, involving historic and archaeological preservation by:
 - i. Consulting the State Historic Preservation Officer on the conduct of investigations, in accordance with Advisory Council on Historic Preservation regulations, "Protection of Historic And Cultural Properties", 36 CFR Part 800, to identify properties and resources listed in or eligible for inclusion in the National Register Of Historic Places that may be affected by the Project, and notifying the Government (FTA) of the existence of any such properties; and,
 - ii. Complying with all Federal requirements to avoid or mitigate adverse effects upon such properties.
- f. Energy Conservation: Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency that are contained in applicable State energy conservation plans issued in compliance with the Energy Policy And Conservation Act, 42 USC §§ 6321 et seq.
- g. Mitigation of Adverse Environmental Effects: Should the proposed Project cause adverse environmental effects, Contractor agrees to take all reasonable steps to minimize such effects pursuant to 49 USC app. § 1610, all other applicable statutes, and the procedures set forth in 23 CFR Part 771 and 49 CFR Part 622. Contractor agrees to undertake all environmental mitigation measures that may be identified as commitments in applicable environmental documents (such as environmental assessments, environmental impact statements,



memoranda of agreement, and statements required by 49 USC § 303) and with any conditions imposed by the Government as part of a finding of no significant impact or a record of decision; all such mitigation measures are incorporated in and made part of this Agreement by reference. As soon as the Government and Contractor reach agreement on any mitigation measures that have been deferred, those measures will then be incorporated into this Agreement. Such mitigation measures may not be modified or withdrawn without the express written approval of the Government.

15.16 Preference for Recycled Products. To the extent applicable, Contractor agrees to comply with U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) "Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines for Products Containing Recovered Materials," 40 CFR Part 247, implementing section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 6962, and otherwise provide a competitive preference for products and services that conserve natural resources and protect the environment and are energy efficient.

15.17 Civil Rights Requirements.

- a. Nondiscrimination: In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- b. Equal Employment Opportunity: The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to the underlying contract:
 - i. Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex: In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project. Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. addition, Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
 - ii. Age: In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332,



Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

- iii. Disabilities: In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- iv. Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties.

15.18 Access for Individuals with Disabilities. PSTA and Contractor agree to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5301(d), which states the Federal policy that elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities have the same right as other individuals to use public transportation services and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement transportation accessibility rights for elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities. PSTA and Contractor also agree to comply with all applicable provisions of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, with 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability; with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to individuals with disabilities; and with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to individuals with disabilities; and with other laws and amendments thereto pertaining to access for individuals with disabilities that may be applicable. In addition, PSTA and Contractor agree to comply with applicable implementing Federal regulations any later amendments thereto, and agrees to follow applicable Federal directives except to the extent FTA approves otherwise in writing. Among those regulations and directives are:

- a. U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)," 49 C.F.R. Part 37;
- b. U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 27;
- c. Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board (U.S. ATBCB)/U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles," 36 C.F.R. Part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. Part 38;
- d. U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services," 28 C.F.R. Part 35;
- e. U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 C.F.R. Part 36;
- f. U.S. General Services Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations, "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped," 41 C.F.R. Subpart 101-19;
- g. U.S. EEOC, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630;
- h. U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, "Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech Disabled," 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F;



- U.S. ATBCB regulations, "Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards," 36
 C.F.R. Part 1194;
- j. FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons," 49 C.F.R. Part 609; and
- k. Federal civil rights and nondiscrimination directives implementing the foregoing Federal laws and regulations, except to the extent the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing.

15.19 *DBE Participation.* Contractor and any subcontractor(s) shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this Agreement. Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this Agreement, which may result in the termination of this Agreement or such other remedy as PSTA deems appropriate. A minimum of <u>eight point twenty-nine</u> percent (8.29%) of the total contract price, as awarded, may be awarded to certified DBE's by Contractor.

15.20 DBE Subcontractor's Payment and Reporting Terms.

- a. Contractor Reporting Requirements: Contractor agrees to count only the value of the work actually performed by the DBE firm toward its overall DBE goal. When a DBE performs as a participant in a joint venture, Contractor agrees to count the portion of the work of the contract that the DBE performs with its own forces toward its DBE goal only if the DBE is performing a commercially useful function of the contract. The factors listed in 49 CFR Part 26 will be used to determine whether a DBE trucking firm is performing a commercially useful function. Contractor understands that expenditures with DBEs for materials or supplies toward DBE goals will be counted according to the factors listed in 49 CFR Part 26. Contractor agrees to meet with the PSTA DBE Liaison Officer for the purpose of verifying Contractor reporting requirements prior to the signing of a contract.
- b. Legal and Contract Remedies: Contractor agrees to report quarterly to the PSTA DBE Liaison Officer on all payments made to DBE Subcontractors. Further, Contractor shall provide all copies of canceled checks made to DBE Subcontractors showing proof of actual payment. Contractor understands that failure to report quarterly to the PSTA DBE Liaison Officer may result in the termination of this Agreement or such other remedy as PSTA deems appropriate.
- c. Contractor understands that PSTA will bring to the attention of the Department of Transportation any false, fraudulent, or dishonest conduct in connection with the program, so that DOT can take the steps (e.g. referral to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral to the DOT inspector General, action under suspension and debarment of Program Fraud or Civil Penalties rules) provided in 26.109. Contractor understands that PSTA will consider similar action under their own legal authorities, including responsibility determinations in future contracts.

15.21 Federal Changes. Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement between PSTA and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this Agreement. Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.



15.22 *Incorporation of FTA Terms.* The preceding provisions include, in part, certain standard terms and conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, dated November 1, 2008, (also see Change 1) are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any PSTA requests which would cause PSTA to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

15.23 Notification of Federal Participation. In the announcement of any third party contract award for goods or services (including construction services) having an aggregate value of \$500,000 or more, the Contractor agrees to specify the amount of Federal assistance to be used in financing that acquisition of goods and services and to express the amount of that Federal assistance as a percentage of the total cost of that third party contract.

15.26 *Emblems.* The Recipient agrees to identify projects supported by FTA by attaching the appropriate emblems as the Government may require.

16. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

16.01 *Venue and Jurisdiction.* The Contract Documents shall be governed by, construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. Contractor and PSTA consent to jurisdiction over them and agree that venue for any state action shall lie solely in the Sixth Judicial Circuit in and for Pinellas County, Florida, and for any federal actions shall lie solely in the U.S. District Court, Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division.

16.02 *Entire Agreement*. The Contract Documents, including all exhibits, constitute the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous written or oral negotiations, agreements, proposals and/or understandings. There are no representations or warranties unless set forth in the Contract Documents.

16.03 Public Records Requirements. Pursuant to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, for any tasks performed by Contractor as an agent of the City, Contractor shall: (a) keep and maintain all public records, as that term is defined in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes ("Public Records"), that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the City in order to perform the work contemplated by this Contract; (b) provide the public with access to Public Records, on the same terms and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the costs provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law; (c) ensure that Public Records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; (d) meet all requirements for retaining Public Records and transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession of the Contractor within thirty (30) days after termination of this Contract, however terminated, and destroy any duplicate Public Records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements and provide the City with a letter confirming that this has been done within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract. All Public Records stored electronically must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the information technology of the City. If Contractor does not comply with a public records request, the City may pursue any and all remedies available in law or equity, including but not limited to specific performance. The provisions of this section only apply to those tasks in which Contractor is acting as an agent of the City.

16.04 Interest of Members of or Delegates to Congress. No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or to receive any benefit there from.

To PSTA:



16.05 *Notices.* All notices required or made pursuant to this Agreement shall be made in writing and sent by certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the following:

To Contractor:

Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority Attn: Brad Miller, CEO 3201 Scherer Drive St. Petersburg, FL 33716	
With required copy to: Alan S. Zimmet, General Counsel Bryant Miller Olive One Tampa City Center Suite 2700 Tampa, Florida 33602	
Either party may change its above noted addrewith the requirements of this Section 15.03.	ess by giving written notice to the other party in accordance
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respectand enforceability of the remaining provisions	provisions of the Contract Documents shall be held to be t by a court of competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, hereof shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby s though that portion had never been a part thereof.
approval by PSTA. Contractor shall be liable fo	s may not be amended or altered without prior written r all costs resulting from and/or for satisfactorily correcting d by written modification to the Contract Documents and
	e headings and section references in this Agreement are and shall not be construed to expand or limit the provisions
enter into this Agreement without the cons	eement represent and warrant that they are authorized to ent and joinder of any other party and that the parties nd authority to bind their respective parties to the terms
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have ca above written.	used this Agreement to be duly executed on the date first
CONTRACTOR:	PSTA:
By: Duly Authorized Designee	By: Brad Miller, CEO
WITNESS:	Approved as to form:
Ву:	By: Alan S. Zimmet, General Counsel



ATTACHMENTS



ATTACHMENT 1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA

(Required with proposal submittal if addenda issued)

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the follo	owing addenda to the Documents.
(Give number and date of each)	
Addendum Number Dated	
Addendum Number Dated	
Addendum Number Dated	
Addendum Number Dated	
Addendum Number Dated	_
Addendum Number Dated	_
Addendum Number Dated	
Failure to acknowledge receipt of all addenda ma Request for Proposal, which will require rejection	y cause the proposal to be considered non-responsive to this of the proposal.
Company Name	
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature
Date	Title



ATTACHMENT 2 PROPOSER INFORMATION FORM

(Required with proposal submittal)

The following information is mandatory. Failure to complete this section may jeopardize your eligibility to be awarded the contract.

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE YOUR INFO	
Company Name:	
Company Street Address:	
Company Mailing Address:	
Company Contact Person:	
Company Telephone & Fax #: _	
Contractor Federal I.D. #:	
Company Contact Email:	
Age of the Firm (years):	
Annual Gross Receipts (\$):	
Is your firm certified by the State of	is a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise?
Number of calendar days required	etion:
I hereby agree to abide by all opposal for the Proposer.	of this proposal and certify that I am authorized to sign this
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature
Date	Title



ATTACHMENT 3 PROPOSAL FORM

(Required with proposal submittal)

TO: Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority 3201 Scherer Drive St. Petersburg, FL 33716

The undersigned hereby agrees to furnish the services as listed below in accordance with the specifications on file with the Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority, 3201 Scherer Drive, FL 33716, which have been carefully examined and attached hereto.

DESCRIPTION	PRICE	EXTENDED PRICE
Υ	EAR ONE	
SHELTER A – 4'0" X 8'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery	Ś	
to PSTA.	y	
	<u> </u>	
SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$	
TO PSTA.		
SHELTER C – 2'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
to PSTA.	\$	
<u>SHELTER D – 8'0" X 12'0" SHELTER</u>		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench and photovoltaic lighting package as		
indicated on the specifications shall include labor,		
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$	



	T	
MAP HOLDERS		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter Map		
Holder unit indicated on specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery	<u>,</u>	
to PSTA.	\$	
PHOTOVOLTAIC LIGHTING PACKAGE		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 10 total Photovoltaic		
Lighting Packages as indicated on the		
specifications and shall include labor, material,		
•	\$	
equipment and delivery to PSTA.		
VA CRANT DECISTANT CUELTED DESIGN	Τ	
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(2 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
shall include labor, material, equipment and	\$	
delivery to PSTA.		
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
4 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and	\$	
shall include labor, material, equipment and	<u>\$</u>	
delivery to PSTA.		
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(6 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and	ė.	
shall include labor, material, equipment and	\$	
delivery to PSTA.		
YEAR ONE TOTAL: NOT-TO-EXCEED LUMP SUM		
BASE BID FOR SHELTERS, MAP HOLDERS AND	¢	
BENCHES LISTED ABOVE	<u>\$</u>	\$



Y	EAR TWO	
SHELTER A – 4'0" X 8'0" SHELTER The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
to PSTA.	\$	
SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery	\$	
to PSTA.		
CUELTED C. 2007 V 42107 CUELTED		
SHELTER C – 2'0" X 12'0" SHELTER The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
to PSTA.	\$	
to 131A.		
SHELTER D – 8'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench and photovoltaic lighting package as		
indicated on the specifications shall include labor,		
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$	
MAP HOLDERS		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter Map		
Holder unit indicated on specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery	\$	
to PSTA.		
DUOTOVOLTAIC LICUTING BACKAGE		
PHOTOVOLTAIC LIGHTING PACKAGE The LUMP SUM price for the		
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 10 total Photovoltaic		
Lighting Packages as indicated on the		
specifications and shall include labor, material,		
equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$	
equipment and delivery to FSTA.		
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(2 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		



shall include labor, material, equipment and		
delivery to PSTA.		
delivery to PSTA.		
	<u>\$</u>	
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(4 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
shall include labor, material, equipment and	\$	
delivery to PSTA.	<u> </u>	
dentery to 1 317th		
VACDANT DESISTANT SUITITED DENIGH	T	
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(6 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
shall include labor, material, equipment and	\$	
delivery to PSTA.	y	
YEAR TWO TOTAL: NOT-TO-EXCEED LUMP SUM		
BASE BID FOR SHELTERS, MAP HOLDERS AND		
BENCHES LISTED ABOVE		<u>\$</u>
BENCHES LISTED ABOVE		
YE	AR THREE	
SHELTER A – 4'0" X 8'0" SHELTER		
II SILLILIA TO AGO SIILLILIA		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
 		
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with	\$	
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery	<u>\$</u>	
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	<u>\$</u>	
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA. SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER	\$	
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA. SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER The LUMP SUM price for the	\$	
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA. SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with	<u>\$</u>	
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA. SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall	<u>\$</u>	
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA. SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA. SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall	<u>\$</u>	
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA. SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA. SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER The LUMP SUM price for the fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with bench as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery		



Π	T	
<u>SHELTER C – 2'0" X 12'0" SHELTER</u>		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery	\$	
to PSTA.	y	
to 131A.		
	T	
<u>SHELTER D – 8'0" X 12'0" SHELTER</u>		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench and photovoltaic lighting package as		
indicated on the specifications shall include labor,		
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$	
material, equipment and delivery to 1317t.		
MAR HOLDERS	<u>r</u>	
MAP HOLDERS		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Prototype		
Shelter Map Holder unit indicated on the		
drawings and specifications and shall include		
labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$	
idaei, matema, equipment and demest, to term		
PHOTOVOLTAIC LIGHTING PACKAGE		
II "		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 10 total Photovoltaic		
Lighting Packages as indicated on the drawings		
and specifications and shall include labor,	\$	
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	3	
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(2 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and	<u> </u>	
shall include labor, material, equipment and	<u>\$</u>	
delivery to PSTA.		
	,	
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(4 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
shall include labor, material, equipment and	\$	
11	3	
delivery to PSTA.		
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(6 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
u	l .	



· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	T	
shall include labor, material, equipment and		
delivery to PSTA.		
	<u>\$</u>	
YEAR THREE TOTAL: NOT-TO-EXCEED LUMP SUM		
BASE BID FOR SHELTERS, MAP HOLDERS AND		
BENCHES LISTED ABOVE		
BENCHES LISTED ABOVE		\$
	EAR FOUR	
SHELTER A – 4'0" X 8'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery	\$	
to PSTA.	3	
SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
to PSTA.	\$	
SHELTER C – 2'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
to PSTA.	<u>\$</u>	
SHELTER D – 8'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench and photovoltaic lighting package as		
indicated on the specifications shall include labor,		
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$	
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.		
MAR HOLDERS		
MAP HOLDERS The LLIMP SLIM price for the		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Prototype		
Shelter Map Holder unit indicated on the		
drawings and specifications and shall include	Ś	
labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	<u>, </u>	



П	1	
PHOTOVOLTAIC LIGHTING PACKAGE		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 10 total Photovoltaic		
Lighting Packages as indicated on the drawings		
and specifications and shall include labor,	\$	
ll · · · ·	\ \ \	
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.		
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(2 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
II ·		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
shall include labor, material, equipment and	<u>\$</u>	
delivery to PSTA.		
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(4 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
 		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and	\$	
shall include labor, material, equipment and		
delivery to PSTA.		
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(6 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
•	<u></u>	
shall include labor, material, equipment and	\$	
delivery to PSTA.		
	T	II
YEAR FOUR TOTAL: NOT-TO-EXCEED LUMP SUM		
BASE BID FOR SHELTERS LISTED ABOVE		\$
	EAR FIVE	
SHELTER A – 4'0" X 8'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
to PSTA.	\$	
	l	
SHELTER B – 4'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
	خ	
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with	<u>\$</u>	
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		



include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
to PSTA.		
SHELTER C – 2'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench as indicated on the specifications and shall		
include labor, material, equipment and delivery		
to PSTA.	\$	
		"
SHELTER D – 8'0" X 12'0" SHELTER		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 5 total Shelters with		
bench and photovoltaic lighting package as		
indicated on the specifications shall include labor,		
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	<u>\$</u>	
, , , ,		
MAP HOLDERS		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Prototype		
Shelter Map Holder unit indicated on the		
drawings and specifications and shall include		
labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	<u>\$</u>	
acces, material, equipment and accident (contains)		
PHOTOVOLTAIC LIGHTING PACKAGE		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 10 total Photovoltaic		
Lighting Packages as indicated on the drawings		
and specifications and shall include labor,		
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$	
	•	
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(2 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
shall include labor, material, equipment and		
delivery to PSTA.	ا د	
	\$	
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(4 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
shall include labor, material, equipment and	\$	
delivery to PSTA.		
II delivery to rain.		



1		
VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH		
(6 PERSON)		
The LUMP SUM price for the		
fabrication/manufacture of 30 total Shelter		
Bench unit indicated on the specifications and		
shall include labor, material, equipment and	\$	
delivery to PSTA.		
YEAR FIVE TOTAL: NOT-TO-EXCEED LUMP SUM		
BASE BID FOR SHELTERS LISTED ABOVE		
DAGE DID TOR SHEETERS LISTED ADOVE		\$
CURANA DV TOTAL OF ALL FILE VEARS		
SUMMARY TOTAL OF ALL FIVE YEARS		
Cumulative Total for All Five Years		\$
		-
UN	IT PRICES	
<u>UNIT PRICE – MAP HOLDER</u>		
The PER UNIT price for the fabrication/manufacture of	of the Shelter Map Holder	
unit indicated on the specifications and shall include	labor, material, equipment	<u></u>
and delivery to PSTA.		\$
·		"
UNIT PRICE - PHOTOVOLTAIC LIGHTING PACKAGE		
	of a single Dhotoveltais	
The PER UNIT price for the fabrication/manufacture	_	
Lighting Package as indicated on the specifications ar	nd shall include labor,	\$
material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.		
UNIT PRICE – VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH	(2 PERSON)	
The PER UNIT price for the fabrication/manufacture of	of the Shelter Bench unit	
indicated on the specifications shall include labor, material, equipment and		ć
delivery to PSTA.		\$
UNIT PRICE – VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH	(4 PERSON)	
The PER UNIT price for the fabrication/manufacture	-	
indicated on the specifications and shall include labo		_
delivery to PSTA.	.,atc.ra., equipment and	\$
UNIT PRICE – VAGRANT RESISTANT SHELTER BENCH	(6 DEPSON)	
	<u> </u>	
The PER UNIT price for the fabrication/manufacture		
indicated on the specifications and shall include labo	r, material, equipment and	\$
delivery to PSTA.		
UNIT PRICE – REPLACEMENT GLASS SIDE PANEL		
The PER UNIT price for a single temper glass side pan	el as indicated on the	, .
specifications and shall include labor, material, equip	ment and delivery to PSTA.	\$
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	•	u



<u>UNIT PRICE – REPLACEMENT ALUMINUM PERFORATED SIDE PANEL</u> The PER UNIT price for a single aluminum perforated side panel as indicated on	
the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$
1316.	
UNIT PRICE – REPLACEMENT ROOF PANEL	
The PER UNIT price for a single roof panel as indicated on the specifications and shall include labor, material, equipment and delivery to PSTA.	\$
TRASH CANS A forty-eight (48) gallon column mounted trash receptacle with lockable lid, mounted left of the shelter, shall be included with each shelter. The trash receptacle shall be comprised of metal and shall be coated so as to resist corrosion. The final color of the trash receptacle will be chosen from available manufacturer options.	\$
DIVE DACKS	
BIKE RACKS	\$



ATTACHMENT 4 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

(Required with proposal submittal)

Proposer certifies that this document is not a sham or collusive proposal, or made in the interest of or on behalf of any collusive proposal, or made in the interest of or on behalf of any person not herein named; and he/she further states that said Proposer has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Proposer for this work to put in a sham proposal, or any other person or corporation to refrain from proposing; and that said Proposer has not in any matter sought by collusion to secure to self-advantage over any other Proposer or Proposers.

Proposer certifies that its proposal is made without previous understanding, agreement, or connections with any person, firm, or corporation making a proposal for the same items and is in all respects fair, without outside control, collusion, fraud, or otherwise illegal action.

As the person authorized to sign this statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with the above requirements.

Company Name		
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature	_
Date	Title	
State ofCounty of		
The foregoing instrument was ac	nowledged before me this day of, 20,	by
Name of Person Acknowledging	·	
{NOTARY SEAL}	Signature of Notary Public	
	Name of Notary Typed, Printed, or Stamped	
Personally known OR Produ	ced Identification	



ATTACHMENT 5 CERTIFICATION OF RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

(Required with proposal submittal)

- (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions.
- (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-contractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

As the person authorized to sign this statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with the above requirements.

Company Name	
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature
Date	Title



ATTACHMENT 6 DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

(To be completed by all contractors, prime or subcontractor, whose contract is greater than \$100,000)

a. contract b. grant c. cooperative agreement d. loan e. loan parantee f. insurance 4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity: prime Subwardee Tier	1. Type of Federal action:	2. Status of Federal Action:	lowing page for public burden disclosure.) 3. Report Type:
and Address of Prime: Prime	a. contract b. grant c. cooperative agreement d. loan e. loan guarantee	a. bid/offer/app b. initial award	plication a. initial filing b. material change For Material Change Only: Year quarter
7. Federal Program Name/Description:	Prime Subawardee		
S. Federal Action Number, if known: S. Federal Action Number, if k	Congressional District, if known:	Congressional D	vistrict, if known:
8. Federal Action Number, if known: S	6. Federal Department/Agency:	7. Federal Progr	am Name/Description:
S		CFDA Numbe	r, if applicable:
(if individual, last name, first name, MI): (attach Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLLA, if necessary) 11. Amount of Payment (check all that apply): S	8. Federal Action Number, if known:		
11. Amount of Payment (check all that apply): \$ a plar 1 21. Form of Payment (check all that apply): a retainer b one-time fee c c c c c c c c c	, - ,	b. Individuals Pe	erforming Services
a. retainer b. one-time fee c. commission d. contingent fee e. deferred f. other; specify: A. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be Performed and Date(s) of Service, including officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) contacted, for Payment Indicated in Item 11: A. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be Performed and Date(s) of Service, including officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) Contacted, for Payment Indicated in Item 11: A. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be Performed and Date(s) of Service, including officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) Contacted, for Payment Indicated in Item 11: A. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be Performed and Date(s) of Service, including officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) SF-LLLA, if necessary) D. Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLLA attached: Yes No		(attach Continu	nation Sheet(s) SF-LLLA, if necessary)
employee(s), or Member(s) contacted, for Payment Indicated in Item 11: (attach Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLLA, if necessary) 15. Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLLA attached: Yes No 16. Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure. Title: Telephone No. Date:	\$ a a a l plar b 12. Form of Payment (check all that apply): a. cash b. in-kind: specify: nature	a. b. c. d. e.	retainer one-time fee commission contingent fee deferred
15. Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLLA attached: Yes No 16. Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure. Signature: Title: Title: Telephone No. Date:	•	• •	ding officer(s),
16. Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure. Signature: Print Name: Title: Telephone No. Date:			
section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure. Signature: Print Name: Title: Telephone No. Date:	.,		
Federal Use Only Authorized for Local Pennoduction Standard Form LLL (Pay. 7-07)	section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a mat of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above w was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pt 1352. This information will be reported to the Congress se be available for public inspection. Any person who fails disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less th	terial representation when this transaction arsuant to 31 U.S.C. mi-annually and will to file the required an \$10,000 and not Signature: Signature: Print Nami	ne:



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether sub-awardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payments to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Use the SF-LLA Continuation Sheet for additional information if the space on the form is inadequate. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

- 1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action
- 2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.
- Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a follow-up report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action.
- 4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or sub-award recipient. Identify the tier of the sub-awardee, e.g., the first sub-awardee of the prime is the 1st tier. Sub-awards include but are not limited to subcontract, sub-grants and contract awards under grants.
- 5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Sub-awardee," then enter the full name, address, city State and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.
- Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizational level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.
- 7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan commitments.
- 8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number, Invitation for Bid (IFB) number, grant announcement number, the contract grant or loan award number, the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-01."
- 9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.
- 10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.
 - (b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10(a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI).
- 11. Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably expected to be paid by the reporting entity (item 4) to the lobbying entity (item 10). Indicate whether the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all boxes that apply. If this is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made.
- 12. Check the appropriate box(es). Check all boxes that apply. If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the nature and value of the in-kind payment.
- 13. Check the appropriate box(es). Check all boxes that apply. If other, specify nature.
- 14. Provide a specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed, or will be expected to perform, and the date(s) of any services rendered. Include all preparatory and related activity, not just time spent in actual contact with Federal officials. Identify the Federal official(s) or employee(s) contacted or the officer(s) employee(s), or Member(s) of Congress that were contacted.
- 15. Check whether or not a SF-LLLA Continuation Sheet(s) is attached.
- 16. The certifying official shall sign and date the form print his/her name, title, and telephone number.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB Control Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, DC 20503.

Date



ATTACHMENT 7 BUY AMERICA CERTIFICATION

(Required for contracts greater than \$100,000)

Certificate of Compliance with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(1)

The Proposer hereby certifies that it will n regulations in 49 CFR Part 661.5.	neet the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(1) and the applicable
Company Name	
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature
Date	Title
Certificate of Non-Compliance with 49 U.S.C	C. 5323(j)(1)
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(1) and 49 C.F.R. pursuant to 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(A), 5323(j)(2)(B), or 5323(j)(2)(D),
Company Name	
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature

Note: Documentation may be required during the project to confirm Buy America purchases.

Title



ATTACHMENT 8 CERTIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

(Required for prime contracts greater than \$100,000)

The undersigned, an authorized official of the Proposer stated below, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

- 1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;
- 2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
- 3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of these offenses enumerated in paragraph (2) of this certification; and
- 4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal had one or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.

(If the undersigned is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such official shall attach an explanation to this proposal).

THE UNDERSIGNED CERTIFIES OR AFFIRMS THE TRUTHFULNESS AND ACCURACY OF THE CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENTS SUBMITTED ON OR WITH THIS CERTIFICATION AND UNDERSTANDS THAT THE PROVISIONS OF 31 U.S.C. SECTIONS 3801 ET SEQ. ARE APPLICABLE THERETO.

Company Name				
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)		Authorized Signature		
Date		Title		
State ofCounty of The foregoing instrument was		this day of	,20, by	
{NOTARY SEAL}	Signature of	Notary Public	Name of Person Acknowledging	
	Name of Not	tary Typed, Printed, or	or Stamped	
Personally known OI	_			



ATTACHMENT 9

CERTIFICATION OF LOWER-TIER PARTICIPANTS (SUBCONTRACTORS) REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

(Required for subcontracts greater than \$25,000)

The Undersigned Lower Tier Participant (Subcontractor to the Primary Contractor), certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. If the above named Lower Tier Participant (Subcontractor) is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

The Undersigned Lower-Tier Participant (Subcontractor), certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted on or with this certification and understands that the provisions of 31. U.S.C. Sections 3801 et seq. are applicable thereto.

Company Name				
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)		Authorized Signature		
Date		Title		
State ofCounty of The foregoing instrument was a	 cknowledged before me	this day of	.20 . bv	
				lame of Person Acknowledging
{NOTARY SEAL}	Signature o	f Notary Public		
	Name of No	otary Typed, Printed, o	r Stamped	
Personally known OR Type of Identification Produced				

NOTICE TO PROPOSER: THIS CERTIFICATION SHALL BE COMPLETED BY ALL SUBCONTRACTORS WHICH WILL HAVE A FINANCIAL INTEREST IN THIS PROJECT WHICH EXCEEDS \$25,000 OR SUBCONTRACTORS WHICH WILL HAVE A CRITICAL INFLUENCE ON OR A SUBSTANTIVE CONTROL OVER THE PROJECT.



ATTACHMENT 10 DBE PARTICIPATION FORM

(Required with proposal submittal)

PSTA has not set a specific goal for this project. PSTA has set an annual DBE goal of **8.29%**.

bid/p	•	•	the information requested s form may result in reje	-		
[]	efforts in accordance	with the Request for Pr	nis contract. Proposer cer roposal to meet the DBE g n Efforts Documentation Fo OR	oal, but, d	espite those	_
[]	49 CFR Part 26 as a	_	erract. Proposer is certified cipation on DOT-assisted of ertification is attached.	_	•	
[]	the DBE(s) listed below	w which will be perfor DBE listed below is cer	ract. If awarded this contr ming a total of per tified according to require	cent of the	total dolla	r amount of
No.	Subcontractor or Supplier	Description of	Work or Specialty	Gender/ Ethnicity	Dollar Amount	Percent of Contract Amount
1						
3						
4						
5						
Please attach a copy of each Subcontractor or supplier FDOT DBE Certification.						
ь	Please attach a copy o	f each Subcontractor or su	upplier FDOT DBE Certification	n.	Total Dollars DBE (s)	Total % of Contract Amount
6	Please attach a copy o	f each Subcontractor or su	upplier FDOT DBE Certification	n.	Dollars	Contract
	Please attach a copy o	f each Subcontractor or su	upplier FDOT DBE Certification	n.	Dollars DBE (s)	Contract Amount
Comp			upplier FDOT DBE Certification	n.	Dollars DBE (s)	Contract Amount



ATTACHMENT 11 DBE GOOD FAITH EFFORTS DOCUMENTATION FORM

(Required if DBE goal is not met)

PSTA ANNUAL DBE GOAL: 8.29%

If Proposer has indicated on the DBE Participation Form that it does not meet the DBE goal, Proposer must submit this form with its DBE Participation Form as documentation of its good faith efforts to meet the goal. Failure to submit this form with its Proposer may render this proposal non-responsive. PSTA may require that Proposer provide additional substantiation of good faith efforts.

Date:	_ Area of Expertise:	
Name:	Company Name:	
Response:		
	_ Area of Expertise:	
Name:	Company Name:	
Response:		
Date:	_ Area of Expertise:	
Name:	Company Name:	
Response:		
Date:	_ Area of Expertise:	
Name:	Company Name:	
Response:		



ATTACHMENT 12 VENDOR DBE PAYMENT REPORT

(Not to be submitted with proposal; required with each invoice submittal if selected)

Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority 3201 Scherer Drive St. Petersburg, FL 33716

For Official Office Use Only	1) Invoice No.	2) Report No.
	3) Reporting Period From:	То:

Instructions: All prime contractors are required to complete and submit this report as specified in the contract, or as requested by the Contracts Specialist, until final payment of the contract. Note: Failure to comply with PSTA's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise provisions may result in contract termination, or the suspension or debarment of the contractor from doing business with PSTA in the future in accordance with the procedures set forth in PSTA's Procurement Regulations. This report must be submitted with each invoice.

4) PSTA Contract Number 5) Type of Contract (X)			6) Contractor's Business Name, Address and Telephone Number						
		nstruction () Service of () Supp							
7) Date of Contract Award 8) Schedule Date of Completion		9) Original Contract Amount		10) Current Contract Amount, Including Modifications (\$ and date) (State amount & date of most recent modification)					
				\$		\$			_//
11) Total Amount Received	To Date	12) Total Amount Owe	ed	13) Committed DBE percentage		14) DBE Instruction for Calculation		15) Actual DBE Participation % to Date	
		\$		%		of Percentage: Dolla paid to DBE divided by			%
\$		Amount of this Invo	oice			amount received by C from PSTA.	ontractor		
		\$							
16) Name of Subcontractor	17) DBE Ethnicity and Gender (include Gender)	18) Description of Work		& Date of Payment(s) ring Current Invoice Period	20) Subcontract Dollars	21) Amount Paid to Date (Dollars)	22) % Paid	to Date	23) Amount of This Invoice Allocated to Subcontractor
	/		\$			\$			
	/		\$			\$			
	/		\$			\$			
	/		\$			\$			
Company Official's Signature & Title		Date Signed		Name & Title of Individual Completing Report					
				/ /					



ATTACHMENT 13 E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT

(Required with proposal submittal)

Contra	ct #:	RFP # 15-004P	
Financi	ial Proje	ct # (s):	
Project	t Descrip	otion:	
	•	ser acknowledges and agrees to u fy the employment of:	tilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify
a)	-	rsons employed by Vendor/Propose of the contract; and	er to perform employment duties within Florida during the
b)	contra Depart	ct with the Department. Vendor,	ned by Vendor/Proposer to perform work pursuant to the 'Proposer acknowledges and agrees that use of the U.S. rify System during the term of the contract is a condition of
 Compai	ny Name		
Authori	zed Indiv	idual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature
 Date			Title



ATTACHMENT 14 CONTRACTOR'S STATEMENT ON SUB-CONTRACTORS

(To be completed for all, DBE and non-DBE, sub-contractors)

Company Name	
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature
Date	Title
	OR
	ated with this proposal. Additional sheets are attacked se Certifications are also attached as appropriate.
Sub-contractor Company Name	
Address	
Contact Person	
Telephone #	
E-mail Address for Contact Person	
Age of Firm	Gross Annual Receipts
Sub-contractor Company Name	
Address	
Contact Person	
Telephone #	
E-mail Address for Contact Person	
Age of Firm	Gross Annual Receipts



ATTACHMENT 15 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM

(Required with proposal submittal)

Equal preference shall be given to vendors submitting a certification with their offer certifying they have a drug-free workplace in accordance with Section 287.087, Florida Statutes.

IDENTICAL OFFER - Whenever two or more offers which are equal with respect to quality, price, and service are received, an offer received from a business certifying it has implemented a Drug-Free Workplace policy shall be given preference. Established procedures for processing tie offers will be followed if none of the tied vendors have a program in place. In order to have a Drug-Free Workplace Program, a business shall:

- 1. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacturer, distribution, dispensing possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
- 2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for violations.
- 3. Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under the offer a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1).
- 4. In the statement in subsection (1), notify employees that, as a condition of working on the commodities or contractual services that are under the offer, the employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of Chapter 893, or of any controlled substance law of the US or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.
- 5. Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if available in the employee's community, by employees who are convicted.

Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of this section.

As the person authorized to sign this statement, I certify and state under oath that this firm complies fully with the above requirements.

Company Name				
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)		Authorized Signature		
Date		Title		
State ofCounty of				
The foregoing instrument was ack	nowledged before me	e this day of,20, by		
		Name of Person Acknowledging		
{NOTARY SEAL}	Signature o	of Notary Public		
	Name of No	lotary Typed, Printed, or Stamped		
Personally known OR Pr	oduced Identification	I		
Type of Identification Produced				



ATTACHMENT 16 CONTRACTOR'S AND LOWER TIER PARTICIPANT'S REFERENCE FORM

(To be completed by prime and sub consultants/subcontractors; Required with proposal submittal)

The following information is required in order that your bid may be reviewed and properly evaluated.

Company Name:				
Address:				
City:	St	tate:	Zip Code:	
Telephone #:		Fax	#:	
Authorized Individual's Name (Print):			Title:	
Authorized Signature:				
How Long at Present Location:				
Total Number of Employees:	Full Time:		Part Time:	
performed similar contract services. All Reference #1:	fields below must be co	mpleted: Reference #2:		
Reference #1:		Reference #2:		
Company:		Company:		
Address:		Address:		
Phone/Fax #:		Phone/Fax #: _		
Contact:		Contact:		
E-Mail:		E-Mail:		
Reference #3:		Reference #4:		
Company:		Company:		
Address:		Address:		
Phone/Fax #:		Phone/Fax #: _		
Contact:		Contact:		
E-Mail:		E-Mail:		

Proposers are required to submit a minimum of four (4) references, but are encouraged to submit more than four (4). Please use a duplicate of this form to submit more references.



ATTACHMENT 17 OFFER & AWARD

(Required with proposal submittal)

<u>OFFER</u> :	
By execution below, Contractor hereby offe	ers to furnish equipment and services as indicated herein.
Company Name	
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature
Date	Title
PSTA use only below this line.	
AWARD.	
AWARD: By execution below, PSTA accepts offer as i	indicated above.
	Chief Financial Officer Signature
	Date of Award
	Chief Executive Officer Signature (if >\$25,000)
	 Date of Award



ATTACHMENT 18 REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

(Only required if the Proposer does not meet the insurance requirements. – Submit during question and answer period.)

It is requested that the insurance requirements, as specified in PSTA's Schedule of Insurance Requirements, be waived or modified on the following contract. Please attach copies of relevant Certificates of Insurance for waiver decision. This form should be submitted during the question and answer period.

Company Name:			
Contract for:			
Company Address:			
Telephone:			
Scope of Work:			
·			
Reason for Waiver:			
reason for waiver.			
Delining Maine			
Policies Waiver will apply to:			
Authorized Signature:			
PSTA use only below this	line.		
	Approved	Not Approved	
Risk Management			
Date			
PSTA Administrator app	eal:		
	Approved:	Not Approved:	
Date:		··· <u></u>	



ATTACHMENT 19 STATEMENT OF NO PROPOSAL

(Not required with proposal submittal)

Note: If you do not intend to submit a proposal on this requirement, please return this form immediately to the address below:

Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority Purchasing Division 3201 Scherer Drive St. Petersburg, FL. 33716

We, the undersigned, have declined to submit or	n your RFP # for the following reasons:
Specifications are too "tight", i.e., g	geared toward one brand or manufacturer only (explain below
Insufficient time to respond to the	IFB
We do not offer this product or ser	vice
Our schedule would not permit us t	to perform
Unable to meet bond requirements	s
Unable to meet specifications	
Specifications unclear (explain belo	ow)
Unable to meet insurance requirem	nents
Remove us from your "Contractors	List" altogether
Other (specify below)	
Remarks:	
nemarks.	
We understand that if the "no proposal" letter the Contractors List for the Pinellas Suncoast Tra	is not executed and returned, our name may be deleted fro ansit Authority.
Company Name	
Authorized Individual's Name (Print)	Authorized Signature
Date	Title











